
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
P.O. Box 190, Prosser, WA  99350-0190; Phone (509) 786-5600 or (509) 736-3080, Fax (509) 786-5625 

commissioners@co.benton.wa.us 

 

 

    

  

 

                                                                                                                                                                                          
  

AGENDA 

BOARD OF BENTON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

Regular Board Meeting 

 Tuesday, October 25, 2016 

Benton County Courthouse, Prosser, WA 

 
   9:00 AM Call to Order  

   Approval of Minutes 

 October 18, 2016 Board Meeting 

 

   Review Agenda 

 

Consent Agenda  

       

Auditor 

a. Surplus of Personal Property  

District Court 

b. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 111 

Facilities 

c. Contract w/Booth & Sons Construction, Inc. for Tenant Improvements for WSU Extension    

d. Contract w/SimplexGrinnell, LP for Fire Sprinkler Testing & Maintenance  

Fairgrounds 

e. Contract w/Frontier Fence, Inc. for Fence Repair  

Human Services 

f. Amended Agreement #3 w/Domestic Violence Services Through Homeless Grant  

g. Records Transfer Agreement w/Greater Columbia Behavioral Health  

h. Amended Agreement E w/St Dept of Commerce, Community Services & Housing for 

Emergency Solutions Grant 

Juvenile 

i. Agreement w/Reuters-West Publishing Corporation for Law Books    

Prosecuting Attorney 

j. Grievance Arbitration Settlement Agreement & Release 

Public Works 

k. Contract w/Granite Construction Co. for Meals Road Asphalt Repair Project  

l. Contract w/Premier Excavation for Victoria Avenue Storm Water Project  

m. Approval of Construction Plans of La Buena Vida Estates  

n. Memorandum Amendment #1 w/Weed District No. 1 for Noxious Weed Control 

Sheriff 

o. Business Consultant Agreement w/Randall Barnes  

p. Contract w/Cascade Engineering Services, Inc. for Diagnostics of Radar Devices 

Sustainable Development 

q. Participation Agreement w/Cities of Kennewick, Pasco, Richland & W Richland for Hanford 

Communities  

r. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0135-101, Dept. 000 

   

 

 

Jerome Delvin 
District 1 

Shon Small 
District 2 

James Beaver 
District 3 

Board of County Commissioners 
BENTON COUNTY 

David Sparks 
County Administrator 

 
Loretta Smith Kelty 

Deputy County Administrator             

mailto:commissioners@co.benton.wa.us
WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Typewritten Text

WEH
Typewritten Text

WEH
Typewritten Text

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Text Box
To view items in detail, please click on the highlighted area. 



Agenda - Board of County Commissioners 

October 25, 2016 

Page 2 

 

 

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
P.O. Box 190, Prosser, WA  99350-0190;   Phone (509) 786-5600 or (509) 736-3080,   Fax (509) 786-5625 

commissioners@co.benton.wa.us 

 

Scheduled Business  

 

Pre-Budget Discussion ~ L Smith-Kelty  

 

Unscheduled Visitors 

   Other Business   
   

mailto:commissioners@co.benton.wa.us


 - 1 - 

MINUTES 

 

BOARD OF BENTON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

 

Regular Board Meeting 

Tuesday, October 18, 2016, 9:00 a.m. 

Commissioners’ Conference Room  

Benton County Courthouse, Prosser, WA 

 

 

Present: Chairman Shon Small 

  Commissioner Jerome Delvin 

  Commissioner James Beaver 

  County Administrator David Sparks   

  Clerk of the Board Cami McKenzie 

 

Benton County Employees Present During All or a Portion of the Meeting: Deputy 

Administrator Loretta Smith Kelty; Adam Fyall, Sustainable Development Manager; County 

Engineer Matt Rasmussen; Assistant County Engineer Robert Blain; Planning Manager Mike 

Shuttleworth; DPA Ryan Brown;  Clerk Josie Delvin; District Court Administrator Jacki Lahtinen; 

Assessor Bill Spencer;  Treasurer Duane Davidson; DPA Steve Hallstrom; Facilities Manager Dan 

Waggoner; Building Manager Steve Brown; Ken Williams, Fire Marshal; Public Services 

Administrator Fred Bowen; Aileen Coverdell and Rosie Sparks, Auditor’s Office; Grant DeJongh, 

Solid Waste; Clark Posey, Planning.  

 

Approval of Minutes 

 

The Minutes of October 11, 2016 were approved.   

 

Review Agenda 

 

The discussion on the Mental Health Jail Addition was pulled.  Three executive sessions regarding 

performance of a public employee, discussion of an applicant for public employment and labor 

negotiations were added. 

 

Consent Agenda 

 

MOTION:  Commissioner Beaver moved to approve the consent agenda items “a” through “x”, 

adding the executive sessions to the regular agenda.   Commissioner Delvin seconded and upon 

vote, the Board approved the following: 

 

Commissioners 

a. Letter to WA Dept. of Ecology ~ Nuclear Waste Program 

b. Letter to Benton Conservation District   

Facilities 

c. Contract w/M.G. Wagner Co. for Roof Replacement @ Justice Center 



 - 2 - 

Information Technology 

d. Maintenance Purchase for Fujitsu Scanners from ImageSource, Inc. 

Juvenile 

e. Contract w/Fikes Northwest Corp. for Odor Control Services 

Prosecuting Attorney 

f. Bi County Agreement w/WA State Council of County & City Employees, Representing 

Crisis Response Unit   

Public Works 

g. Authorization of Road Department Safety Day October 27, 2016 

h. Contract w/Granite Construction Company for Meals Road Asphalt Repair  

i. Agreement w/City of Yakima for Supplies, Material, Equipment and Services 

j. Amendment #1 w/US Army Corps of Engineers for Easement  

k. Contract w/D & D Tri-Rivers Excavating, Inc. for Hanks Road Drainage Project 

Sheriff 
l. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 118 

m. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 119 

n. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 120 

o. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000101, Dept. 121  

p. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0116-101, Dept. 000  

q. Agreement with Booker Auction for Unclaimed Property 

r. Second Contract Amendment w/Telmate, LLC for Inmate Phone Services 

s. Procurement Award of Paper/Glove Supplies to Crown Paper & Janitorial Supply 

Company 

t. Procurement Award of Chemicals & Supplies to Crown Paper & Janitorial Supply 

Company 

u. Procurement Award of Inmate Supplies to Bob Barker Company, Inc. 

v. Procurement Award of BDU Uniforms to 911 Supply, Inc. 

w. Procurement Award of Uniforms to Gall’s LLC 

Superior Court 

x. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 123 

 

Public Hearings - Ordinance Amendments 

 

Steve Brown and Ken Williams presented the ordinance amendments to adopt the new 2015 

International Building, Residential, Mechanical, Fire, Swimming Pool and Uniform Plumbing 

Codes.  He said each of the amendments needed a separate public hearing.   

 

Building Code – BCC 3.04 

 

As there was no one present to testify, public testimony was closed.   

 

MOTION:  Commissioner Delvin moved to approve the proposed Ordinance relating to the 

Building Code and amending BCC 3.04 as presented.  Commissioner Beaver seconded and upon 

vote, the motion carried. 

  



 - 3 - 

Plumbing Code - BCC 3.08 

 

As there was no one present to testify, public testimony was closed. 

 

MOTION:  Commissioner Delvin moved to approve the proposed Ordinance relating to the 

Plumbing Code and amending BCC 3.08 as presented.  Commissioner Beaver seconded and upon 

vote, the motion carried. 

 

Mechanical Code - BCC 3.12 

 

As there was no one present to testify, public testimony was closed.   

 

MOTION:  Commissioner Delvin moved to approve the proposed Ordinance relating to the 

Mechanical Code and amending BCC 3.12 as presented.  Commissioner Beaver seconded and 

upon vote, the motion carried.   

 

Fire Code - BCC 3.16 

 

As there was no one present to testify, public testimony was closed.   

 

MOTION:  Commissioner Delvin moved to approve the proposed Ordinance relating to the Fire 

Code and amending BCC 3.16 as presented.  Commissioner Beaver seconded and upon vote, the 

motion carried.   

 

Minimum Standards - Fire Flows, Water Mains, Fire Hydrants and Roads – BCC 3.18 

 

As there was no one present to testify, public testimony was closed.   

 

MOTION:  Commissioner Delvin moved to approve the proposed Ordinance relating to the 

Minimum Standards for Fire Flows, Water Mains, Fire Hydrants and Roads and amending BCC 

3.18 as presented.  Commissioner Beaver seconded and upon vote, the motion carried.   

 

Swimming Pools - BCC 3.24 

 

As there was no one present to testify, public testimony was closed.   

 

MOTION:  Commissioner Delvin moved to approve the proposed Ordinance relating to 

Swimming Pools and amending BCC 3.24 as presented.  Commissioner Beaver seconded and upon 

vote, the motion carried.   

 

Assignment - Solid Waste Advisory Committee 

 

Grant DeJongh said the State Legislature passed an amendment requiring the Board of County 

Commissioners to appoint an individual or position to the Benton County Solid Waste Advisory 

Committee to represent agricultural interests.   



 - 4 - 

The Board agreed to have Mr. DeJongh call out for any interested individuals and present those to 

the Board for appointment.  

 

Other Business 

 

Commissioner Beaver said he would be attending an event at the Kennewick Council Chambers 

at 5:30 regarding their use of the .09 money and development of the shoreline for Columbia 

Gardens. 

 

Jail Use Contracts 

 

Commissioner Delvin said he wanted to clarify the County was not going to share revenue with 

the cities as they moved forward in negotiating the new jail use contracts.  Commissioner Beaver 

said he agreed because they did not have any revenue to share.  He said they tried to support the 

local jurisdictions but not at the detriment of their organization when they didn’t have the 

resources.   

 

Chairman Small said he was looking at the September 13 minutes when the Board talked about 

contracts, revenue sharing and whether they wanted to take over the jail.  He said it was his 

understanding they were going keep the revenue sharing as status quo at least for now.  He said he 

had no issue with changing things up while they were reviewing the budget but he didn’t want to 

contact the cities and say it was off; he suggested continuing it until the next budget cycle. 

 

Commissioner Beaver said that was September and it was now October 18; he said he wanted to 

give clear direction that he did not want to share revenue they didn’t have.  He said he did not want 

to tell someone they needed to lay off employees and then pass along revenue.  He wanted to tell 

the cities they were not interested in sharing funds.   

 

Commissioner Delvin said he agreed with Commissioner Beaver and they needed to make a 

decision so they could move forward on the contracts.  He stated the cities were against the LFO 

docket and now there was a bill coming for that lawsuit, plus the $1 million loss in revenue per 

year.   

 

Chairman Small said he still wanted to give them at least a year notice so they could adjust.   

 

MOTION:  Commissioner Delvin moved to direct Loretta Smith Kelty and David Sparks to work 

with Ryan Brown and that he would assist on a new contract with the cities that did not include 

revenue sharing effective January 1.  

 

Discussion 

 

Chairman Small said he wanted to make that one year so they could give them notice.   

 

Upon vote, the motion carried with Chairman Small opposing. 

 

  



 - 5 - 

Noxious Weed Assessment 

 

Chairman Small said they had a public meeting to discuss an increase in the assessment amount 

of $1.00 per parcel and they would be bringing that to the Board.  He said he spoke to about 15 

farmers in the area and they were not in favor of the increase.   

 

Partnerships 

 

Mr. Sparks commented that when the Board agreed to use the 3/10 for some costs in the jail, it 

would save the cities about $300,000 and any monies of the 3/10 that went into District Court 

would not get charged to the cities, so it benefitted the whole community not just the County.   

 

Additionally, the County gave up $83,000 and $76,000 in tax revenue to the cities when they 

formed the revitalization areas and were also willing to provide $130,000 for the Boys and Girls 

Club by providing funding for the Bob Olsen Parkway.  He said they had tried to answer each 

partnership that had been asked of them.  

 

Budget Update  

 

Mr. Sparks said they had been working on the budget with the departments and made the following 

adjustments: 

 

 Workman’s Compensation assessment adjusted - $1/4 million saved 

 IT – new system for Assessor and Treasurer – taking some costs and moving into capital 

as one-time costs and not ongoing assessments - about $1/2 million saved 

 Trying to nail down labor costs 

 

He said with the adjustments so far, they had cut the deficit down to about $3 million, however, 

they still had a lot more work to do.  The LFO hit was $1 million per year which took away revenue 

increases and kept them pretty flat. The preliminary number for sharing Superior Court costs was 

a $300,000 shift to Franklin County and Ms. Smith Kelty was still trying to work out the Juvenile 

Court cost issue with Franklin County.   

 

Treasurer Duane Davidson thanked the Board and the Facilities Department for the new parking 

lot and drive-up drop boxes for ballots and tax payments at the Annex.   

 

The Board recessed, reconvening at 10:05 a.m.  

 

Executive Session – Litigation Update 

 

The Board went into executive session at 10:05 a.m. with DPA Ryan Brown for 15 minutes to 

discuss the 3rd quarter litigation update.  Also present were Steve Hallstrom, Loretta Smith Kelty, 

David Sparks, and Cami McKenzie. The Board came out at 10:20 a.m.  No decisions were made 

in executive session.   

 

  



 - 6 - 

Executive Session 

 

The Board went into executive session at 10:23 a.m. with DPA Steve Hallstrom for 20 minutes to 

discuss labor negotiations, qualifications of an applicant for a public position and performance of 

a public employee.  Also present were David Sparks, Ryan Brown, Cami McKenzie, Loretta Smith 

Kelty, and Fred Bowen.  The Board came out 10:40 a.m.  No decisions were made in executive 

session.   

 

Payroll Checks 

 

Check Date: 10/11/2016 

 

Warrant #: 240053 

Total all funds: $1,859.90 

 

Check Date:  10/17/2016 

 

Payroll Draw Checks 

Warrant #: 240054 

Direct Deposit #: 118412-118592 

Total all funds:  $108,214.68 

 

Payroll Draw Deductions/Transfers 

Taxes #: 101161015 

Total all funds:  $35,110.22 

 

Account Payables 

 

Check Date:  10/11/2016 

 

P-Cards #: 1016 

Total all funds: $363,189.11 

 

Check Date:  10/14/2016 

 

Warrants #:  146330-146477 

Total all funds:  $2,751.10 

 

Warrants #: 146687-146844 

Total all funds:  $942,287.29 

 

Transfers #: 10141601-10141612 

Total all funds:  $722,168.61 

 

Total amounts approved by fund can be reviewed in the Benton County Auditor’s Office. 

 



 - 7 - 

Resolutions 

 

2016-796: Contract w/M.G. Wagner Co. for Roof Replacement @ Justice Center 

2016-797: Maintenance Purchase for Fujitsu Scanners from ImageSource, Inc. 

2016-798: Contract w/Fikes Northwest Corp. for Odor Control Services 

2016-799: Bi County Agreement w/WA State Council of County & City Employees, 

Representing Crisis Response Unit   

2016-800: Authorization of Road Department Safety Day October 27, 2016 

2016-801: Contract w/Granite Construction Company for Meals Road Asphalt Repair  

2016-802: Agreement w/City of Yakima for Supplies, Material, Equipment and Services 

2016-803: Amendment #1 w/US Army Corps of Engineers for Easement  

2016-804: Contract w/D & D Tri-Rivers Excavating, Inc. for Hanks Road Drainage Project 

2016-805: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 118 

2016-806: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 119 

2016-807: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 120 

2016-808: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000101, Dept. 121  

2016-809: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0116-101, Dept. 000  

2016-810: Agreement with Booker Auction for Unclaimed Property 

2016-811: Second Contract Amendment w/Telmate, LLC for Inmate Phone Services 

2016-812: Procurement Award of Paper/Glove Supplies to Crown Paper & Janitorial Supply 

Company 

2016-813: Procurement Award of Chemicals & Supplies to Crown Paper & Janitorial Supply 

Company 

2016-814: Procurement Award of Inmate Supplies to Bob Barker Company, Inc. 

2016-815: Procurement Award of BDU Uniforms to 911 Supply, Inc. 

2016-816: Procurement Award of Uniforms to Gall’s LLC 

2016-817: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 123 

2016-818: Adoption of Ordinance 575 Relating to the Building Code 

2016-819: Adoption of Ordinance 576 Relating to the Plumbing Code 

2016-820: Adoption of Ordinance 577 Relating to the Mechanical Code 

2016-821: Adoption of Ordinance 578 Relating to the Fire Code 

2016-822: Adoption of Ordinance 579 Relating to Minimum Standards for Fire Flows, Water 

Mains, Fire Hydrants and Roads 

2016-823: Adoption of Ordinance 580 Relating to Swimming Pools 

 

There being no further business before the Board, the meeting adjourned at approximately 10:40 

a.m.  

 

_______________________________   ______________________________ 

Clerk of the Board      Chairman 

 



A. Coverdell 

 
  
BACKGROUND INFORMATION  

 

As outlined in Resolution 07-752, several County departments request supply and 

equipment items be declared surplus and be disposed of. 

 

 

SUMMARY  

The Personal Property Manager has determined that the personal property on the attached 

exhibit can be declared surplus and disposed of accordingly.  

 
  

AGENDA/WORKSHOP ITEM TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED         

Meeting Date: October 25, 2016 Execute Contract      Consent Agenda x    

Subject: 

Declaration of Surplus 

Property  Pass Resolution  x   Public Hearing     

   Pass Ordinance      1st Discussion     

By: A. Coverdell Pass Motion      2nd Discussion     

Reviewed By: V. Pettey / B. Chilton Other      Other      

                    

WEH
Text Box
a. Surplus of Personal Property



A. Coverdell 

RESOLUTION 
 

 
BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 
 
IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY POLICY, RE: SURPLUS OF PERSONAL PROPERTY IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH RESOLUTION 07-752 
 
 
WHEREAS, The Benton County Auditor is the Personal Property Manager and maintains an updated 
inventory listing of County Personal Property; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Information Technology and Public Works departments have identified supply items 
and equipment which have become obsolete; and, 
 
WHEREAS, it is the recommendation of the Personal Property Manager and the Information 
Technology and Public Works departments that the listed property be declared surplus; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board finds it to be in the best interest of the citizens of Benton County to surplus 
antiquated and obsolete property; NOW, THEREFORE 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, that based on the recommendation of the Personal Property Manager and as 
supported by the Information Technology and Public Works departments, the listed property in 
Attachment A is hereby determined to be surplus and will be held for online auction, the next surplus 
sale, disposed of as waste, or recycled depending on final condition assessment. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Dated this _________day of _____________________, 2016. 
 
       

_______________________________________ 
      Chairman of the Board 
 

_______________________________________ 
      Member 
 

_______________________________________ 
      Member  

Constituting the Board of County Commissioners of 
Benton County, Washington  

 
Attest: ___________________________ 

Clerk of the Board    
 

  
  



A. Coverdell 

ATTACHMENT A 
 

Type Tag Counted Serial Number Make Description 

laptop 16953 Ken BQPZMF1 Dell Latitude D830 Duo/2000 

laptop 17990 Ken DQPN6M1 Dell Latitude E6500 Duo/2660 

laptop 18792 Ken 8LHBFS1 Dell Latitude E6420 14" 

laptop 18794 Ken FVHBFS1 Dell Latitude E6420 14" 

laptop 18818 Ken 3T6V9S1 Dell Latitude E6420 i5/2500 

laptop 19359 Ken BDNY9W1 Dell Latitude E6530 i3-2350M 

laptop 17781 Ken FTBW9K1 Dell Latitude E4300 Duo/2400 

laptop 17793 Ken 3R7RBK1 Dell Latitude E6500 Duo/2660 

laptop 18468 Ken 8CSMPN1 Dell Latitude E6500 Euo/2800 

laptop 18506 Ken D25ZPN1 Dell Latitude E4300 Duo/2400 

laptop 18781 Ken FLHBFS1 Dell Latitude E6420 14" 

laptop 18782 Ken 71MBFS1 Dell Latitude E6420 14" 

laptop 18783 Ken DKHBFS1 Dell Latitude E6420 14" 

laptop 18785 Ken 9MHBFS1 Dell Latitude E6420 14" 

laptop 18786 Ken 2MHBFS1 Dell Latitude E6420 14" 

laptop 18788 Ken JKHBFS1 Dell Latitude E6420 14" 

laptop 18789 Ken JVHBFS1 Dell Latitude E6420 14" 

laptop 18790 Ken HMHBFS1 Dell Latitude E6420 14" 

laptop 18791 Ken BLHBFS1 Dell Latitude E6420 14" 

laptop 18793 Ken GBHBFS1 Dell Latitude E6420 14" 

laptop 18797 Pro 5T4L4S1 Dell Precision M6600 Quad/2500 

laptop 18819 Ken 7S6V9S1 Dell Latitude E6420 i5/2500 

laptop 16294 Pro FVKGH91 Dell Latitude X1 PM/1100 

monitor 17379 Ken CN-OG313H-74261-89L-3VEL Dell 1908FP 19" LCD 

monitor 15073 Ken A598317F0211K0281 Planar PX191 19" LCD 

monitor 18801 Pro CN-O8JCGH-74445-1BABAJM Dell Pro P1911 19" LCD 

monitor 18802 Pro CN-O8JCGH-74445-1BI-043L Dell Pro P1911 19" LCD 

monitor 16438 Ken CN-OCC352-64180-6CJ-58YS Dell 1707FP 17" LCD 

monitor 16924 Ken CN-OCC388-71618-7BF-AGGF Dell 1907FPV 19" LCD 

monitor 17027 Ken CN-OCC388-71618-7C2-AHER Dell 1907FPV 19" LCD 

monitor 17079 Ken CN-OCC388-71618-7C2-AHJ6 Dell 1907FPV 19" LCD 

monitor 17728 Ken CN-OC553H-74443-8BK-A266 Dell 1907FPV 19" LCD 

monitor 18647 Ken 

CN-OOVN5M-72872-16K-

HPYM Dell Pro2210 22" LCD 

monitor 18690 Pro CN-O8JCGH-74445-17P-BTQL Dell P2210 22" LCD 

monitor 19054 Ken CN-O8JCGH-74445-24H-909M Dell Pro 1911 LCD 19" 

monitor 19055 Ken CN-O8JCGH-74445-24H-874M Dell Pro 1911 LCD 19" 

monitor 723 Ken CN-0CC352-64180-63B-2ESC Dell 1707FP 17" LCD 

monitor 795 Pro CN-0CC352-64180-63T-OR7C Dell 1707FP 17" LCD 

monitor 796 Pro CN-0CC352-64180-63T-ORCC Dell 1707FP 17" LCD 

monitor 846 Ken CN-OCC352-64180-64K-OQWL Dell 1707FP 17" LCD 

monitor 1750 Pro CN-OCC299-64180-639-22CS Dell 1907FP 19" LCD 



A. Coverdell 

monitor 1806 Pro MX-OC9536-74262-815-24LL Dell 2007FP 20" LCD 

monitor 1807 Pro MC-OC9536-74262-815-24FL Dell 2007FP 20" LCD 

monitor 1809 Pro MX-OC9536-74262-814-32EL Dell 2007FP 20" LCD 

monitor 1815 Pro CN-OFP182-71618-817-RDFX Dell 1908FP 19" LCD 

monitor 1836 Pro MX-OC9536-74262-848-1NLS Dell 2007FP 20" LCD 

monitor 1837 Pro MX-OC9536-74262-848-1N6S Dell 2007FP 20" LCD 

monitor 1966 Pro CN-ONWXT6-72872-28F-A1DU Dell Pro P1913S 19"  

monitor 1968 Pro CN-ONWXT6-72872-2BR-A7JM Dell Pro P1913S 19"  

monitor 15884 Ken CN-0T6116-71618-54F-AAPZ Dell 1905FP 19" LCD 

monitor 16292 Ken CN-OJ6642-71618-5CG-AG9D Dell 1704FPV 17" LCD 

monitor 16799 Pro MX-OC9536-74262-7AP-2KHL Dell 1707FPV 17" LCD 

monitor 17087 Pro CN-OCC388-71618-7CF-AA2V Dell 1907FPV 19" LCD 

monitor 17941 Pro CN-OC553H-74445-9BN-A018 Dell 1907FPV 19" LCD 

monitor 17973 Ken CN-OC553H-74445-9CI-AB4T Dell 1907FPV 19" LCD 

monitor 17996 Ken CN-OFH8MW-74445-01J-DHQL Dell Pro 2009W 20" LCD 

monitor 18032 Ken CN-O4MGYF-74261-054-4CCS Dell Pro 1909W 19" LCD 

monitor 18033 Ken CN-O4MGYF-74261-054-4CDS Dell Pro 1909W 19" LCD 

monitor 18039 Pro CN-OXYF7K-72872-068-05EL Dell Pro 1909W 

monitor 18326 Ken CN-OXYF7K-72872-O7U-AC9L Dell Pro 1909W 19" LCD 

monitor 18377 Ken CN-OFH8MW-74445-OAF-AXNL Dell Pro 2009W 20" LCD 

monitor 18430 Ken MX-OG324H-74262-09S-1L7L Dell UltraSharp 2007FP 20" LCD 

monitor 18513 Pro CN-04828K-74445-OCP-EF9S Dell P2210 22" LCD 

monitor 18547 Ken CN-08JCGH-74445-141-APQL Dell Pro1911 19" LCD 

monitor 18642 Pro CN-OF8NDP-74261-15E-06MU Dell P2411H 24" LCD 

monitor 18643 Pro CN-OF8NDP-74261-15C-1C5U Dell P2411H 24" LCD 

monitor 18670 Ken 

CN-OOVWSM-72872-187-

GA1M Dell P2211 22" LCD 

monitor 18687 Ken CN-O8JCGH-74445-17U-BSWL Dell P2210 22" LCD 

monitor 18844 Ken CN-O6H6FX-74445-217-573L Dell P2210 22" LCD 

monitor 18862 Ken CN-O8JCGH-74445-1CR-B56U Dell Pro P1911 19" LCD 

monitor 18927 Ken CN-O8JCGH-74445-1CC-075U Dell Pro P1911 19" LCD 

monitor 18954 Pro CN-O6H6FX-74445-22D-BM6M Dell P2210 22" LCD 

monitor 18962 Pro CN-O8JCGH-74445-222-057U Dell Pro 1911 19" LCD 

monitor 18963 Pro CN-O8JCGH-74445-222-065U Dell Pro 1911 19" LCD 

monitor 18966 Pro CN-O8JCGH-74445-222-062U Dell Pro 1911 19" LCD 

monitor 18968 Pro CN-O8JCGH-74445-222-033U Dell Pro 1911 19" LCD 

monitor 18969 Pro CN-O8JCGH-74445-222-022U Dell Pro 1911 19" LCD 

monitor 19028 Pro CN-O8JCGH-74445-24K-B0KL Dell Pro P1911 19" LCD 

monitor 19029 Pro CN-O8JCGH-74445-24K-B0CL Dell Pro P1911 19" LCD 

monitor 18653 Pro CN-OF8NDP-74261-164-OTJU Dell P2411H 24" LCD 

monitor 15393 Ken MX02Y311-47605-417-D723 Dell 1703FP 17" LCD 

monitor 15908 Ken MY-OH6304-47603-56G-A8BG Dell 1704FPV 17" LCD 

monitor 16982 Ken CN-OCC388-71618-7C2-AG14 Dell 1907FPV 19" LCD 

monitor 16988 Ken CN-OCC388-71618-7C2-AG40 Dell 1907FPV 19" LCD 

monitor 18845 ken CN-O6H6FX-74445-217-542L Dell P2210 22" LCD 



A. Coverdell 

net 17952 Ken CN9522G3MR HP ProCurve 1810G-24 Switch 

other 15625 Pro EE26440363F Epson PowerLite 730C Projector 

other 16304 Pro SB6210021 Panasonic Projector PT-LB30NTU LCD 

pc 18804 Pro FKVHHS1 Dell OptiPlex 790 SFF i3/3300 

pc 18953 Pro 574MLS1 Dell OptiPlex 990 SFF i5/2400 

pc 18648 Ken 81B3ZQ1 Dell OptiPlex 790 SFF i3/3100 

pc 18649 Ken 81B1ZQ1 Dell OptiPlex 790 SFF i3/3100 

pc 18849 Ken DQNWJS1 Dell OptiPlex 790 SFF i3/3300 

pc 18928 Ken 1N84KS1 Dell OptiPlex 790 SFF i3/3300 

pc 728 Ken JXX72B1 Dell OptiPlex GX620DT PentD/2800 

pc 1805 Pro J5SGJF1 Dell Precision 390 MT Duo/2660 

pc 1882 Pro F6H77J1 Dell Precision Duo/3160 

pc 1890 Pro 8BFD5J1 Dell OptiPlex 760 Duo/3000 

pc 1923 Pro DX53QM1 Dell 

Precision T3500 Quad 

Xeon/2530 

pc 1924 Pro CX53QM1 Dell 

Precision T3500 Quad 

Xeon/2530 

pc 1925 Pro 4T53QM1 Dell 

Precision T3500 Quad 

Xeon/2530 

pc 1956 Pro C5Z2XR1 Dell OptiPlex 990 MT i7 2600/3400 

pc 16271 Ken 66Q2891 Dell OptiPlex GX620 P4/3400 

pc 17376 Ken 5F72TH1 Dell OptiPlex 755 Duo/3330 MT 

pc 17380 Pro 23LYTH1 Dell OptiPlex 740 64x2/2700 

pc 17655 Ken F3CVYH1 Dell OptiPlex 740 64x2/2300 

pc 18040 Pro GG9QLM1 Dell OptiPlex 780 SFF Duo/2930 

pc 18194 Ken J23JMN1 Dell OptiPlex 780 SFF Duo/2930 

pc 18233 Ken 420VMN1 Dell OptiPlex 780 SFF Duo/2930 

pc 18298 Ken DW35NN1 Dell OptiPlex 780 SFF Duo/2930 

pc 18306 Ken DW55NN1 Dell OptiPlex 780 SFF Duo/2930 

pc 18329 Ken 8JW7PN1 Dell OptiPlex 780 SFF Duo/2930 

pc 18392 Ken 8F17PN1 Dell OptiPlex 780 SFF Duo/2930 

pc 18418 Ken 14SNPN1 Dell OptiPlex 780 SFF Duo/2930 

pc 18423 Ken 9W4DPN1 Dell OptiPlex 780 SFF Duo/2930 

pc 18545 Pro J3J7HQ1 Dell OptiPlex 790 SFF i3/3100 

pc 18549 Ken 5KFKJQ1 Dell OptiPlex 790 SFF i3/3100 

pc 18613 Ken 8MCHXQ1 Dell OptiPlex 790 SFF i3/3100 

pc 18644 Pro GRBGYQ1 Dell OptiPlex 990 MT i7/3400 

pc 18650 Ken 8196ZQ1 Dell OptiPlex 790 SFFi3/3100 

pc 18658 Pro GYRYYQ1 Dell OptiPlex 990 MT i7/3400 

pc 18667 Ken 9VP9DP1 Dell OptiPlex 780 

pc 18803 Pro FKVJHS1 Dell OptiPlex 790 SFF i3/3300 

pc 18978 Ken 5QPSLS1 Dell OptiPlex 990 SFF i5/2400 

pc 18986 Ken 5QNSLS1 Dell OptiPlex 990 SFF i5/2400 

pc 19033 Ken F48W3V1 Dell OptiPlex 990 SFF i5/2400 

pc 19278 Ken FCQGWV1 Dell OptiPlex 990 SFF i5/2500 



A. Coverdell 

pc 18417 Ken 14SMPN1 Dell OptiPlex 780 SFF Duo/2930 

pc 16969 Ken 1J38NF1 Dell OptiPlex 740 SFF AthlonX2/2800 

printer 19418 Pro CNDF312596 HP LaserJet Pro 400 Color M451dn 

printer 17118 Pro VNB3N10521 HP LaserJet P1006 

printer 16758 Pro JE6G002640 Epson TM-H600III (receipt printer) 

printer 16760 Pro JE6G002652 Epson TM-H600III (receipt printer) 

printer 17115 Pro MY7389R1ZK HP DeskJet 6980 

printer 17377 Pro VNB3P03669 HP LaserJet P1006 

scanner 18038 Ken 9891 Fujitsu fi-6240 

      
 
 

Item 

Tag 

No. S/N Item Description Qty. 

          

1 n/a n/a Surveying hubs - 12" - bundles of 50 89 

2 n/a n/a Surveying hubs -   8" - bundles of 50 62 

3 n/a --- Slide hammer (to drive hubs) 1 

4 n/a n/a Tripod legs 1 

5 n/a --- Frisco 15' surveying rod 1 

6 n/a n/a Street broom cores - 96" 9 

7 n/a n/a Pickup side tool boxes 3 

8 n/a H820 628788 Onan GenSet 3K diesel generator, Model 3.0DJA-3CE/2236V 1 

9 n/a --- Lincoln portable gas welder/generator, Model Weldanpower  1 

              AC-225/DC-210/6, 16hp   

10 n/a n/a 2015 Shop built flatbed body, mounts on Ford F350/F450, 1 

              set up for sign shop operation   

11 n/a --- 1991 Autocrane, Model 3052-60-E-05-91 Utility bed 1 

12 n/a P980928253 Ammco B2900, 9,000 lb. two post car lift 1 

13 n/a --- 2001 Cancade, 14.6' - 10 yard dump truck bed with hydraulics 1 

14 n/a --- 2006 U.S. Mower, Inc. boom mower attachments with hydraulics, 2 

              framework mounts to John Deere 6420 with grass and brush flail   

              heads, including spare parts   

15 0172 D0522FHA26161 1976 International truck, license C39775, miles 23,990 1 

16 0516 1FTNF21588EB15695 2007 Ford F250 4X4, license 82133C, miles 109,346 1 

17 0531 1GNDT33S692132311 2009 Chevrolet Trailblazer, license 83890C, miles 136,377 1 

18 1025 1G2WJ52M9RF260500 1994 Pontiac Grand Prix, license 29333C, miles 119,698 1 

19 1049 1FAFP52U5WG183663 1998 Ford Taurus, license 45142C, miles 83,927 1 

20 1050 1FAFP52U7WG183664 1998 Ford Taurus, license 45143C, miles 98,727 1 

21 1053 1FAFP52U4XG205959 1999 Ford Taurus, license 50031C, miles 50,845 1 

22 1058 2G1WL52J1Y1234922 2000 Chevrolet Lumina, license, 54203C, miles 55,027 1 

          

 



WEH
Text Box
b. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 111





WEH
Text Box
c. Contract w/Booth & Sons Construction, Inc. for Tenant Improvements for WSU Extension















































































 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date: 10-25-16        
Subject: Contract award for 

Simplex Grinnell 
Prepared by:       D. Waggoner  
Reviewed by:       

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract __X___ 
Pass Resolution  __X___  
Pass Ordinance  ______  
Pass Motion  ______  
Other   _____ 

 
 
Consent Agenda           __X__  
Public Hearing            _____  
1st Discussion            _____ 
2nd Discussion            _____ 
Other             _____  

   

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION / SUMMARY 
 
While the Facilities Department is responsible for the maintenance, testing and certification of the fire 
sprinkler systems in various County buildings.   This work is required to be performed by a licensed fire 
sprinkler technician. 
 
Benton County Facilities solicited quotes from several service providers and only SimplexGrinnell provided 
a valid quote and two vendors declined to provide a quote: 
 
 SimplexGrinnell –  Spokane Valley, WA $8,000.00 base, not including WSST 
 Cascade Fire -   Kennewick, WA -  Declined 
 Pacific Fire Inspection - Kennewick, WA -  Declined 
 
 
Services will be provided at several locations including: Benton County Justice Center, Benton County 
Jail, Benton Franklin Health District and the Benton County Fairgrounds. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Approve the attached Resolution and Contract between Benton County and SimplexGrinnell, LP of 
Spokane, WA. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Total cost not to exceed $34,999.00, including WSST and fees.  This amount will average approximately 
$10,000.00 per year for three years.  Funding source will be Current Expense of the Facilities budget. 
 
MOTION 
 
Move to approve the attached Public Works contract between Benton County and SimplexGrinnell, LP of 
Spokane, WA, for fire sprinkler maintenance and testing. 
  
 

WEH
Text Box
d. Contract w/SimplexGrinnell, LP for Fire Sprinkler Testing & Maintenance



 RESOLUTION 
  
BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 
 
IN THE MATTER OF EXECUTING A PUBLIC WORKS CONTRACT BETWEEN BENTON 
COUNTY AND SIMPLEXGRINNELL, LP. FOR FIRE SPRINKLER SYSTEM TESTING AND 
MAINTENANCE SERVICES 
 
WHEREAS, the Facilities Department is responsible for the testing and maintenance of fire 
sprinkler systems maintenance and testing; and 
  
WHEREAS, this work must be performed by a certified fire sprinkler company; and 
 
WHEREAS, quotes were solicited from the several fire sprinkler testing companies and responses 
were received from: 
 -- SimplexGrinnell, LP Kennewick, WA  $8,000.00 base, not including WSST 
 -- Pacific Fire   Kennewick, WA  Declined 
 -- Cascade Fire  Kennewick, WA  Declined 
  
and the quote received from SimplexGrinnell was a valid quote within the expected cost range; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Facilities Manager recommends authorizing a Public Works contract between 
Benton County and SimplexGrinnell, LP of Spokane Valley, WA. to provide fire sprinkler testing and  
maintenance services to various Benton County locations; NOW THEREFORE,  
 
BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, Benton County, Washington, 
the Board hereby approves the Public Works contract with SimplexGrinnell, LP. in the amount not to 
exceed $34,999.00 including WSST; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the Public Works contract will expire on December 31, 2019; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the Board authorizes the Chairman to sign the agreement attached 
hereto. 
 
 
Dated this  __________________ day of ___________________ , 2016. 
 
 
                                   ______ ___                
 Chairman of the Board 
 
  
                                   ______ ___                
 Member 
 
 
                                   ______ ___                
 Member 
  
 Constituting the Board of Commissioners 

of Benton County, Washington. 
Attest....................................................... 

         Clerk of the Board 



































































State of Washington
Department of Labor & Industries
Prevailing Wage Section - Telephone 360-902-5335

PO Box 44540, Olympia, WA 98504-4540

Washington State Prevailing Wage
The PREVAILING WAGES listed here include both the hourly wage rate and the hourly rate of fringe benefits. On public
works projects, worker's wage and benefit rates must add to not less than this total. A brief description of overtime

calculation requirements are provided on the Benefit Code Key.

Journey Level Prevailing Wage Rates for the Effective Date: 10/6/2016

County Trade Job Classification Wage Holiday Overtime Note

Benton Sprinkler Fitters (Fire Protection) Journey Level $53.00 7J 1R

https://fortress.wa.gov/lni/wagelookup/prvWagelookup.aspx

1 of 1 10/6/2016 9:13 AM



Revised 07/16 
 

 

 
BENTON COUNTY BACKGROUND CHECK 

AUTHORIZATION AND RELEASE 
 

 
 
 
Last Name   First Name   Middle Name    Sex: M   F 

 
     
All Other Previous Names Used      Date of Birth 

 
 
Driver’s License Number/State      Social Security Number 

 
 
Primary Phone number       Alternate Phone number   Email address 

 
 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 
A background check is required of all Benton County employees and volunteers, as well as contractors 
assigned to work in secure areas and for individuals needing jail access.  Successful completion of the 
background check, as determined by Benton County, is required prior to the first day of work or entry into the 
jail.  If you are visiting the Benton County Jail for business and discover that a friend or family member is in 
custody you must immediately notify jail staff.  Jail access will be for official business only. No personal 
business is authorized. I understand that employment, jail access or volunteer status with Benton County is 
contingent upon the results of a background check.  I understand that adverse findings during my background 
check may result in denied jail access, withdrawal of any offer of employment/assignment with Benton County, 
and/or termination of my employment/assignment with Benton County.  I further understand that if I am found to 
have made any false or misleading statements in my application or background check materials, I may be 
denied access or have my employment/volunteer status terminated even after I have started work, and may 
subject myself to criminal prosecution. 
 
AUTHORIZATION AND RELEASE 
I hereby authorize Benton County (including but not limited to Personnel Resources Department, Sheriff’s 
Office, Juvenile Justice Center, and/or Prosecutor’s Office personnel) to conduct a background check in 
connection with my application for jail access and/or employment/assignment with Benton County.  I 
understand that this background check may include, but is not limited to, a review of records on file with the 
Washington State Patrol, the FBI National Crime Information Computer (NCIC) and Interstate Identification 
Index (III), local law enforcement agencies, the Department of Licensing, courts of law, and other agencies, and 
also may, depending on my employment or assignment, involve fingerprinting.  I understand that a more 
comprehensive background check is required for certain Benton County positions and may include review of 
records relating to arrests and/or other contacts with law enforcement. 
 
I hereby authorize and request any person, government entity, law enforcement or criminal justice agency, 
and/or other organization (public or private) to provide any information and/or records solicited by Benton 
County in connection with my application for jail access and/or work with Benton County.  I hereby release 
those persons and entities, and Benton County, its elected officials, judges, directors, appointees, managers, 
employees, volunteers, agents, and assigns, from any and all liability that may result from providing and/or 
soliciting such information and/or records.  A facsimile copy or photocopy of this waiver shall have the same 
force and effect as a copy with my original signature. 
 

 I am a  <circle all that apply>        Contractor          Volunteer    

Location to obtain access <circle all that apply>      BC Jail      BC Justice Center 

Your Company/Organization Name:  

Your Position Title:  



Revised 07/16 
 

 

 
 
ADVERSE HISTORY INFORMATION 
The following information pertains to all incidents, whether under Washington State law, the law of another 
State, or federal law.  If you answer “yes” to any question, please provide details including the date, 
location/jurisdiction, case number, charge if applicable, and arresting agency if applicable. 
 
 
 Have you ever been convicted of, or are you currently charged with, any crime (this includes adjudications 

as a juvenile unless expunged or vacated)?   
 
 
 Have you ever been found by way of any judicial, administrative, or employer process or investigation to 

have committed sexual harassment or to have engaged in any other forcible or nonconsensual sexual 
conduct? 

 
 
 Have you ever been terminated from employment or a previous position (including volunteer positions), or 

permitted to resign in lieu of termination? 
 
 

 If answered yes, please describe the circumstances surrounding the incident. 
 
 
 If requesting access to the jail, do you currently have any family members or friends in custody at the 

Benton County Jail?  If so, who is in jail and what is their relationship to you? 
 
 
 
 
CONTINUING NATURE OF ADVERSE HISTORY INFORMATION 
I understand that during all times I have jail access, am employed by, or have volunteer status with, Benton 
County, that I am required to inform my immediate supervisor or jail staff any time I am charged with or 
convicted of any crime, and any time I am named as a defendant/respondent in any lawsuit or complaint 
alleging sexual harassment or other forcible or nonconsensual sexual conduct.  I understand that failure to 
make such notification within one business day of such action, excluding any time I am incarcerated or 
otherwise incapable of making such notification, shall be grounds for denied access into the jail and/or  
immediate termination of my employment or volunteer status with Benton County.  
 
POTENTIAL DISQUALIFIERS 
 

 Felony convictions within the past five (5) years 
 Violent misdemeanors or domestic violence convictions within the past five (5) years 
 Drug related convictions within the past five (5) years 

 
Some exemptions may apply on a case by case basis. 
 

I have read, fully understand, and voluntarily provide this Authorization and Release.  By 
signing below, I also certify, under penalty of perjury as provided by the laws of the 
State of Washington, that I am the person identified above, and that all of the 
biographical, adverse history, and other information provided above is true, correct, and 
complete to the best of my knowledge. 
 
 
_________________________________    ________________________________ 
Signature       Date 

 
A minimum of two business days required for processing. 

Do Not Write Below This Line 

 
Comments:        COMPLETED BY AND DATE: 
 
 
 
 



 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date 10/18/16 
Subject:         Frontier Fence 
Prepared by:   J. Donley  
Reviewed by:   P.Schut 

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 
Execute Contract __X__ 
Pass Resolution  __X__  
Pass Ordinance  _____  
Pass Motion  _____  
Other   _____ 

 

 

Consent Agenda            __X__  
Public Hearing            _____  
1st Discussion            _____ 
2nd Discussion            _____ 
Other             _____  

   
 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 

A fence at the Benton County Fairgrounds was damaged in a car accident.  A claim was filed and 
received from the driver’s insurance company. The Fairgrounds Office Manager solicited quotes 
from the following companies for the repair of the damaged fence at the Benton County 
Fairgrounds.   
 

• Frontier Fence, Inc – Pasco, WA. - $7,006.87 including w.s.s.t 
• Summit Fence Company, LLC- Lacey, WA. – did not respond 
• Fencing and Awning – Moxee, WA. – did not respond  

 
Proposals were reviewed and the recommendation is to move forward with a contract for said 
services with Frontier Fence, Inc. as the lowest bidder.   
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Approve the attached Resolution and Contract between Benton County and Frontier Fence, Inc. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Not to exceed $7,006.87 including W.S.S.T to be paid from Fairgrounds O & M 0124101 
 
MOTION 
 
Move to approve the attached contract between Benton County and Frontier Fence, Inc. 
 

WEH
Text Box
e. Contract w/Frontier Fence, Inc. for Fence Repair



Orig: Commissioners   J. Donley  
cc: Auditor; S. Araiza; Contract Management; F. Bowen; Frontier Fence, Inc.  

RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY,  WASHINGTON:  
 
IN THE MATTER OF A CONTRACT BETWEEN BENTON COUNTY A ND FRONTIER FENCE, INC., 
FOR REPAIR OF A DAMAGED FENCE AT THE BENTON COUNTY FAIRGROUNDS 
 
WHEREAS, Per Resolution 2012-677, any public works services or materials involving less than $40,000 may be 
entered into after direct negotiation and authorization from the Board of Benton County Commissioners; and 
 
WHEREAS, proposals were solicited and received from the following contractors:  
 

• Frontier Fence, Inc – Pasco, WA. - $7,006.87 including w.s.s.t 
• Summit Fence Company, LLC- Lacey, WA. – did not respond 
• Fencing and Awning – Moxee, WA. – did not respond 

And; 
 
WHEREAS, the Benton County Fairgrounds Office Manager reviewed the quotes and recommends awarding the 
repair of a damaged fence at the Benton County Fairgrounds to Frontier Fence, Inc. as the lowest bidder for an 
amount not to exceed $7,006.87 including W.S.S.T. NOW, THEREFORE 
 
BE IT RESOLVED , the Board of Benton County Commissioners, Benton County, Washington hereby agrees with 
the recommendation and awards the repair of a damaged fence at the Benton County Fairgrounds to Frontier Fence, 
Inc., for a contract amount not to exceed $7,006.87 including W.S.S.T; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED the contract shall begin upon execution by both parties and expire on December 
31st, 2016; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED , the Board hereby authorizes the Chairman to sign the service agreement attached 
hereto.  
 
Dated this . . . . . . . day of . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . , 20 . . . .  

       
Chairman of the Board  

 
       

Chairman Pro-Tem 
 

         
Member 

 
Constituting the Board of County 

Attest: . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .      Commissioners of Benton County, 
 Clerk of the Board      Washington 
 
 
 
 









































State of Washington

Department of Labor & Industries
���������	
��	�
������
�
���������
������������

��
���
������
��� ����
�!
�"��������

Washington State Prevailing Wage
���
�#$%!&'&()
�!)$�
��*��+
����
���,+�
-���
���
��,���
.�	�
����
��+
���
��,���
����
�/
/���	�
-���/��*0
��
�,-��
.��1*
���2��*�
.��1��3*
.�	�
��+
-���/��
����*
 ,*�
�++
��
���
��**
����
���*
�����0
!
-���/
+�*�������
�/
������ �

��,������
��4,��� ���*
���
�����+�+
��
���
����/��
5�+�
6��0

Journey Level Prevailing Wage Rates for the Effective Date: 10/7/2016

������ ��	
� �����	������	���� �	�� ����
	� �������� ����

������ 7���
$�����* 7���
$����� 8��09� 9

https://fortress.wa.gov/lni/wagelookup/prvWagelookup.aspx

1 of 1 10/7/2016 2:25 PM



WEH
Text Box
f. Amended Agreement #3 w/Domestic Violence Services Through Homeless Grant











WEH
Text Box
g. Records Transfer Agreement w/Greater Columbia Behavioral Health















WEH
Text Box
h. Amended Agreement E w/St Dept of Commerce, Community Services & Housing for Emergency Solutions Grant













WEH
Text Box
i. Agreement w/Reuters-West Publishing Corporation for Law Books































A G E N D A ITEM T Y P E O F ACTION N E E D E D 
Meeting Date: September 25, Execute Contract X Consent Agenda X Meeting Date: 

2016 Pass Resolution X Public Hearing 
Subject: Grievance Pass Ordinance 1st Discussion Subject: 

Arbitration Pass Motion 2nd Discussion 
Settlement & Other Other 
Release 

Prepared by: 
Reviewed by: 

C. Fraley 
S. Hallstrom 

B A C K G R O U N D INFORMATION: Negotiators for Benton County negotiated and reached an 
agreement with Teamsters Union Local 839 regarding implementation of the arbitrator's settlement 
remedy in the Bovee Grievance Arbitration. 

SUMMARY: See above. 

RECOMMENDATION: Approve a resolution approving Grievance Arbitration Settlement Agreement, 
and authorizing board members to sign same. 

F I S C A L IMPACT:. Fiscal impact will be absorbed by and through current budget appropriations for 
Public Works. 

MOTION: I move that we approve the resolution authorizing the Chairman of the Board to sign the 
Resolution and the Grievance Arbitration Settlement Agreement. 

WEH
Text Box
j. Grievance Arbitration Settlement Agreement & Release



WEH
Text Box
k. Contract w/Granite Construction Co. for Meals Road Asphalt Repair Project







WEH
Text Box
l. Contract w/Premier Excavation for Victoria Avenue Storm Water Project







WEH
Text Box
m. Approval of Construction Plans of La Buena Vida Estates





WEH
Text Box
n. Memorandum Amendment #1 w/Weed District No. 1 for Noxious Weed Control





 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date: Oct. 25, 2016       
Subject: Consultant Agreement 
Prepared by: L. Small       
Reviewed by: Ryan Lukson  
   

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract __X _  
Pass Resolution  __X__  
Pass Ordinance  _____  
Pass Motion  _____  
Other   _____ 

 
Consent Agenda           __X   _ 
Public Hearing            _____  
1st Discussion            _____ 
2nd Discussion            _____ 
Other             _____  

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION/ SUMMARY 
 
Per Resolution 2015-381 the Board of Commissioners approved the First Amendment to extend the agreement with 
Randall L. Barnes for consultation services for the Benton County Sheriff’s Office with a contract term expiring 
December 31, 2016.  

 
The Benton County Sheriff’s Office was pleased with the services provided and would like to enter into 
another agreement with Randall L. Barnes, Pasco, WA for “as needed” consultation services for officers 
and employees of the Benton County Sheriff’s Office relating to management, leadership, and organization 
of the Sheriff’s Office with a term expiring June 30, 2015; and 
 
The fee for said consultation services shall be $500 for any 4-hour session performed in a single day and 
$1,000 for any 8-hour session performed in a single day, plus any applicable tax, as well as the actual 
cost incurred for the purchase of supplies and printing material, for an overall contract amount not to 
exceed $8,000. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 

Approve the attached Resolution and Business Consultant Service Agreement between Benton County 
and Randall L. Barnes for an overall two (2) year contract amount not to exceed $10,000.  
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM 
 
Approved by Ryan Lukson.  
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Total fiscal impact would be an amount up to $10,000, including any applicable tax, as well as any actual 
cost incurred for the purchase of supplies and printing material.  Said funds to be paid will be split between 
Dept. 120 & 121 and were included in the 2017/2018 budget process.    
 
 
MOTION 
 
Consent Agenda 

WEH
Text Box
o. Business Consultant Agreement w/Randall Barnes



Original: Sheriff’s Office 
cc: Auditor; PA; Randall L. Barnes   L. Small  

RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 
 
IN THE MATTER OF A BUSINESS CONSULTANT SERVICE AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
BENTON COUNTY AND RANDALL L. BARNES FOR CONSULTATION SERVICES FOR THE 
BENTON COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE  
 
WHEREAS, per Resolution 2015-381 the Board of Commissioners approved the First 
Amendment to extend the agreement with Randall L. Barnes for consultation services for the 
Benton County Sheriff’s Office with a contract term expiring December 31, 2016; and 
  
WHEREAS, the Benton County Sheriff’s Office is pleased with the services provided and would 
like to enter into another agreement with Randall L. Barnes, Pasco, WA for “as needed” 
consultation services for officers and employees of the Benton County Sheriff’s Office relating to 
management, leadership, and organization of the Sheriff’s Office with a term expiring December 
31, 2018; and  
 
WHEREAS, the fee for said consultation services shall be $500 for any 4-hour session performed 
in a single day and $1,000 for any 8-hour session performed in a single day, plus any applicable 
tax, as well as the actual cost incurred for the purchase of supplies and printing material; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Sheriff’s Office believes this is a valuable service for our officers and employees 
and recommends entering into said business consultant service agreement with Randall L. 
Barnes for an overall contract amount not to exceed $10,000, including any applicable tax and 
any actual cost for supplies and printing material; NOW, THEREFORE 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Benton County Commissioners concurs with the 
recommendation and hereby awards the business consultant agreement to Randall L. Barnes, 
Pasco, WA for consultant services for the Benton County Sheriff’s Office for an agreement amount 
not to exceed $10,000, including any applicable tax and any actual cost for supplies and printing 
material; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the board hereby authorizes the Chairman to sign the agreement 
between Benton County and Randall L. Barnes attached hereto; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the attached contract shall commence January 1, 2017 and shall 
terminate December 31, 2018. 
 
 
Dated this ___________ day of ___________________, 2016 
 
 
         
 Chairman of the Board 

         
             

                Member 
          

 
             

                Member 
Attest:  
                       Clerk of the Board 



1 
 

BUSINESS CONSULTANT AGREEMENT 
 

  This Agreement is made and entered into by and between BENTON COUNTY, a political subdivision, with 
its principal offices at 620 Market Street, Prosser, WA 99350 (hereinafter “COUNTY”), and RANDALL L. BARNES, 
with its principal office at 5019 Santa Fe Lane, Pasco, WA, (hereinafter “CONSULTANT”). 
 
  1.  Consultation Services:  The CONSULTANT agrees to perform the following services in accordance with 
the  terms and conditions set  forth  in  this Agreement:   The CONSULTANT will provide consultation with  the 
officers and employees of the Benton County Sheriff’s Office concerning matters relating to the management, 
leadership,  and  organization  of  the  Sheriff’s  Office,  their  financial  policies,  the  terms  and  conditions  of 
employment, and generally any matter arising out of the business affairs of the Benton County Sheriff’s Office. 
 
  2.  Terms of Agreement:  This Agreement shall commence January 1, 2017 and shall terminate December 
31, 2018.   
 
  3.   Time Devoted by Consultant:   The CONSULTANT  shall provide either a 4‐hour  session or 8‐hour 
session, whichever is agreed upon by both parties, for consultation services as set forth in Section 1 and Section 
5 of this Agreement.   
 
  4.  Place Where Services Will Be Rendered:  The CONSULTANT will perform services at any location in 
Tri‐Cities that has been prearranged by the COUNTY.    
 
  5.  Payment to Consultant:  The CONSULTANT will be paid by the COUNTY five hundred dollars ($500.00) 
for any 4‐hour session performed  in a single day, and one  thousand dollars  ($1,000)  for any 8‐hour session 
performed in a single day for the services provided in Section 1 of this Agreement as well as the actual costs 
incurred by CONSULTANT for the purchase of supplies and printing materials necessary to fulfill the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement with an overall contract amount not to exceed $10,000.   The CONSULTANT shall 
submit itemized receipts regarding the purchase of supplies and printing materials under the Agreement prior 
to payment from the COUNTY.     CONSULTANT shall bill COUNTY for all monies due under the Agreement no 
later than 15 days of the date of service performed.  Payment shall be made within 30 business days of the date 
of receipt by the COUNTY. 
 
  6.  Independent Contractor:  Both the COUNTY and the CONSULTANT agree that the CONSULTANT will 
act as an  independent contractor  in  the performance of  its duties under  this Agreement.   Accordingly,  the 
CONSULTANT shall be responsible for payment of all taxes including Federal, State, and local taxes arising out 
of the CONSULTANT’s activities in accordance with this Agreement. 
 
  7.    Confidential  Information:    The  CONSULTANT  agrees  that  any  information  received  by  the 
CONSULTANT during the performance of this Agreement shall be treated by the CONSULTANT as confidential 
and will not be revealed to any other persons, firms, or organizations. 
 
  8.     Liability Coverage:  The CONSULTANT will not be an insured party under any applicable liability 
coverage obtained by the COUNTY covering the activities performed by the CONSULTANT pursuant to this 
Agreement. 
 
   
 





 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date: October 25, 2016      
Subject: Contract w/Cascade 

Engineering Services 
Prepared by: L. Small       
Reviewed by: Ryan Lukson 

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract _X   _ 
Pass Resolution  _____  
Pass Ordinance  _____  
Pass Motion  _____  
Other   _____ 

 
Consent Agenda           _X   _ 
Public Hearing            _____  
1st Discussion            _____ 
2nd Discussion            _____ 
Other             _____  

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION/ SUMMARY 
 
The Benton County Sheriff’s Office uses radar/LIDAR speed measuring devices for traffic enforcement 
throughout Benton County, with said devices requiring periodic diagnostic tests and recalibration in order 
to ensure proper performance.  
 
The Sheriff’s Office has contract with Cascade Engineering Services, Inc. in past years for said diagnostic 
testing and recalibration, and is pleased with their services. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Sheriff’s Office recommends entering into a personal service contract once again with Cascade 
Engineering Services, Inc. for diagnostics, recalibrations, and N.I.S.T. traceable certification of radar and 
LIDAR Speed Measuring Devices (SMD’s) for the year of 2017 and 2018, with an option to extend said 
contract for up to two (2) additional 12-month periods.  
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
The amount of said service contract shall not exceed $5,000 plus WSST, per each year the contract is in 
effect.  Said expenditures shall be paid from Department 121 and was included in the 2017/2018 budget 
process.  
 
 
MOTION 
 
Consent Agenda  
 

WEH
Text Box
p. Contract w/Cascade Engineering Services, Inc. for Diagnostics of Radar Devices



Original: BCSO 
cc: Auditor; PA; Cascade Engineering   L. Small  

RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 
 
IN THE MATTER OF AWARDING CASCADE ENGINEERING SERVICES, INC. A PERSONAL 
SERVICE CONTRACT FOR DIAGNOSTICS, RECALIBRATION, AND N.I.S.T. TRACEABLE 
CERTIFICATIONS OF RADAR AND LIDAR SPEED MEASURING DEVICES FOR THE 
SHERIFF’S OFFICE 
 
WHEREAS, per Resolution 2012-677, Section 4.0 Services “the County need not advertise or 
follow a formal competitive bidding procedure for service contracts, but rather the county may 
instead evaluate and utilize the procedures it deems best under the individual circumstances in 
order to obtain services of the highest quality at the lowest cost; and  
  
WHEREAS, the Sheriff’s Office uses radar/LIDAR speed measuring devices for traffic 
enforcement throughout Benton County; and  
 
WHEREAS, the devices require periodic diagnostic tests and recalibration in order to ensure 
proper performance; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Sheriff’s Office recommends entering into a personal service contract with 
Cascade Engineering Services, Inc., Redmond, WA for diagnostics, recalibrations, and N.I.S.T. 
traceable certification of radar and LIDAR Speed Measuring Devices (SMD’s) for calendar years 
2017 and 2018; NOW, THEREFORE 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, Benton County, Washington, 
the Board concurs with the Sheriff’s Office recommendation and hereby awards the personal 
service contract to Cascade Engineering Services, Inc. for a total contract amount not to exceed 
$5,000 plus WSST, per each year the contract is in effect; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the attached contract shall commence January 1, 2017 and shall 
expire December 31, 2018.  Upon mutual agreement of both parties, the original terms and 
conditions of the contract may be extended for two (2) additional 12-month periods.  
 
 
Dated this ____________  day of __________________, 2016 
 
 
 
         
 Chairman of the Board 

         
             

                Member 
          

 
             

                Member 
Attest:  
                       Clerk of the Board 



 
- 1 - 

  
BENTON COUNTY 

PERSONAL SERVICES CONTRACT 
 TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
  
 

THIS CONTRACT is made and entered into by and between BENTON 
COUNTY, a political subdivision, with its principal offices at 620 
Market Street, Prosser, WA 99350 (hereinafter "COUNTY"), and 
CASCADE ENGINEERING SERVICES, INC., with its principal offices at 
6640 185th Avenue NE, Redmond, WA 98052, (hereinafter 
"CONTRACTOR"). 

 
In consideration of the mutual benefits and covenants 

contained herein, the parties agree as follows: 
 
1. CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 
 

This Contract consists of the following documents: 
a. Terms and Conditions (this document) 
b. Exhibit A - Scope of Work 
c. Exhibit B – Compensation  

 
2.  DURATION OF CONTRACT 
 

The term of this Contract shall begin January 1, 2017 and 
shall expire on December 31, 2018.  The CONTRACTOR shall complete 
all work by the time(s) specified herein, or if no such time is 
otherwise specified, no later than the expiration date. Upon mutual 
agreement of both parties, the original terms and conditions of 
the contact may be extended for up to two (2) additional 12-month 
periods.  
 
3.  SERVICES PROVIDED 
 

The CONTRACTOR shall perform the following services: 
 

a. The diagnostics, recalibration and N.I.S.T. traceable 
certification of Radar and LIDAR Speed Measuring 
Devices, (SMD). A detailed description of the services 
to be performed by the CONTRACTOR is set forth in Exhibit 
"A” Scope of Work, which is attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by reference.  

 
b. The CONTRACTOR agrees to provide its own labor and 

materials.  Unless otherwise provided in this Contract, 
no material, labor, or facilities will be furnished by 
the COUNTY.  

 
c. The CONTRACTOR shall perform the work specified in this 



 
- 2 - 

Contract according to standard industry practice. 
 

d. The CONTRACTOR shall complete its work in a timely manner 
and in accordance with the schedule agreed by the 
parties. 

 
e. The CONTRACTOR shall confer with the COUNTY from time to 

time during the progress of the work.  The CONTRACTOR 
shall prepare and present status reports and other 
information that may be pertinent and necessary, or as 
may be requested by the COUNTY. 

 
4. CONTRACT REPRESENTATIVES 
 

Each party to this Contract shall have a contract 
representative.  Each party may change its representative upon 
providing written notice to the other party.  The parties' 
representatives are as follows: 
 

a. For CONTRACTOR:   Dennis G. Kringer, Director 
      6640 185th Avenue, NE 
      Redmond, WA 98052  
      Phone: (425) 895-8617 
      Fax: (425) 702-9358 
      Email: DennisK@cascade-eng.com 
 
 

b. For COUNTY:    Lisa Small, Contract Coordinator  
     7122 W. Okanogan Place, Bldg. B  
     Kennewick, WA 99336 
     Phone: (509) 735-6555 Ext 3880 
     Fax: (509) 736-3895 
     Email: Lisa.Small@co.benton.wa.us  

 
5. COMPENSATION 
 

For the services performed hereunder, the CONTRACTOR shall be 
paid as follows: 
 
 a. A detailed description of the compensation to be paid by 

the COUNTY is set forth in Exhibit “B”, which is attached 
hereto and incorporated herein by reference.   

 
b. The maximum total amount payable by the COUNTY to the 

CONTRACTOR under this Contract shall not exceed 
$5,000.00 excluding WSST per each year the contract is 
in effect. 

 



 
- 3 - 

c.  No payment shall be made for any work performed by the 
CONTRACTOR, except for work identified and set forth in 
this Contract. 

 
d.  The CONTRACTOR may, in accordance with Exhibit B, submit 

invoices to the COUNTY not more than once per month 
during the progress of the work for partial payment of 
the work completed to date.  Invoices shall cover the 
time CONTRACTOR performed work for the COUNTY during the 
billing period.  The COUNTY shall pay the CONTRACTOR for 
services rendered in the month following the actual 
delivery of work and will remit payment within thirty 
(30) days from the date of receipt. 

 
e. The CONTRACTOR shall not be paid for services rendered 

under this Contract unless and until they have been 
performed to the satisfaction of the COUNTY. 

 
f. In the event the CONTRACTOR has failed to perform any 

substantial obligation to be performed by the CONTRACTOR 
under this Contract and such failure has not been cured 
within ten (10) days following notice from the COUNTY, 
the COUNTY may, in its sole discretion, upon written 
notice to the CONTRACTOR, withhold any and all monies 
due and payable to the CONTRACTOR, without penalty, 
until such failure to perform is cured or otherwise 
adjudicated.  "Substantial" for the purposes of this 
Contract means faithfully fulfilling the terms of this 
Contract with variances only for technical or minor 
omissions or defects. 

 
g. Unless otherwise provided in this Contract or any 

exhibits or attachments hereto, the CONTRACTOR will not 
be paid for any billings or invoices presented for 
services rendered prior to the execution of this 
Contract or after its termination. 

 
6. AMENDMENTS AND CHANGES IN WORK 
 

a. In the event of any errors or omissions by the CONTRACTOR 
in the performance of any work required under this 
Contract, the CONTRACTOR shall make any and all 
necessary corrections without additional compensation.  
All work submitted by the CONTRACTOR shall be certified 
by the CONTRACTOR and checked for errors and omissions.  
The CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for the accuracy of 
the work, even if the work is accepted by the COUNTY.  

 



 
- 4 - 

b. No amendment or modification shall be made to this 
Contract, unless set forth in a written Contract 
Amendment signed by both parties.  Work under a Contract 
Amendment shall not proceed until the Contract Amendment 
is duly executed by the COUNTY. 

 
7. HOLD HARMLESS AND INDEMNIFICATION   
 

a. The CONTRACTOR shall hold harmless, indemnify and defend 
the COUNTY, its officers, officials, employees and 
agents, from and against any and all claims, actions, 
suits, liability, loss, expenses, damages, and judgments 
of any nature whatsoever, including reasonable costs and 
attorneys' fees in defense thereof, for injury, 
sickness, disability or death to persons or damage to 
property or business, which are caused in whole or in 
part by any act or omission, negligent or otherwise, of 
CONTRACTOR or its subcontractors, which arise in 
connection with the work performed under this Contract, 
or are caused or occasioned in whole or in part by reason 
of the presence of the CONTRACTOR or its subcontractors 
or their property upon or in the proximity of the 
property of the County. PROVIDED, that the CONTRACTOR'S 
obligation hereunder shall not extend to injury, 
sickness, death or damage caused by or arising out of 
the sole negligence of the COUNTY, its officers, 
officials, employees or agents. 

 
b. In any and all claims against the COUNTY, its officers, 

officials, employees and agents by any employee of the 
CONTRACTOR, subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly 
employed by any of them, or anyone for whose acts any of 
them may be liable, the indemnification obligation under 
this Section shall not be limited in any way by any 
limitation on the amount or type of damages, 
compensation, or benefits payable by or for the 
CONTRACTOR or subcontractor under Workers Compensation 
acts, disability benefit acts, or other employee benefit 
acts, it being clearly agreed and understood by the 
parties hereto that the CONTRACTOR expressly waives any 
immunity the CONTRACTOR might have had under such laws, 
including but not limited to Title 51 of the Revised 
Code of Washington. By executing this Contract, the 
CONTRACTOR acknowledges that the foregoing waiver has 
been mutually negotiated by the parties and that the 
provisions of this Section shall be incorporated, as 
relevant, into any contract the CONTRACTOR makes with 
any subcontractor or agent performing work hereunder. 



 
- 5 - 

CONTRACTOR’S obligations under this Section [7] shall 
survive termination and expiration of this Contract. 

 
c. The CONTRACTOR'S obligations hereunder shall include, 

but are not limited to, investigating, adjusting and 
defending all claims alleging loss from action, error or 
omission, or breach of any common law, statutory or other 
delegated duty by the CONTRACTOR, the CONTRACTOR'S 
employees, agents or subcontractors. 

 
8. INSURANCE   
 

a. Professional Liability Insurance: Prior to the start of 
work under this Contract, the CONTRACTOR shall secure 
and maintain at its own expense Professional Liability 
Insurance appropriate to the CONTRACTOR'S profession and 
shall be written subject to limits of not less than one 
million dollars ($1,000,000) each claim and in the 
aggregate. Such insurance will be provided by an 
insurance carrier with a Best's Rating of not less than 
A-VII.  

 
The coverage shall apply to liability for a professional 
error, act or omission arising out of the scope of the 
CONTRACTOR'S services defined in this Contract. Coverage 
shall not exclude hazards related to the work rendered 
as part of the Contract or within the scope of the 
CONTRACTOR'S services as defined by this Contract. If 
the policy is claims made, the retroactive date shall be 
prior to or coincident with the effective date of this 
Contract. CONTRACTOR is required to maintain claims made 
professional liability insurance for a minimum of 36 
months after the effective date of termination or 
completion of this Contract. If coverage is canceled or 
non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims-made 
policy form with a Retroactive Date prior to the contract 
effective date, the Contractor must purchase “extended 
reporting” coverage for a minimum of 36 months after the 
completion of work. CONTRACTOR shall annually provide 
COUNTY with proof of all such insurance.  

 
b. Workers Compensation: CONTRACTOR shall comply with all 

State of Washington workers compensation statutes and 
regulations. Prior to the start of work under this 
Contract, workers compensation coverage shall be 
provided for all employees of CONTRACTOR and employees 
of any subcontractor or sub-subcontractor. Coverage 
shall include bodily injury (including death) by 
accident or disease, which arises out of or in connection 
with the performance of this Contract. CONTRACTOR shall 



 
- 6 - 

submit a copy of its certificate of coverage from the 
Department of Labor and Industries prior to commencement 
of work. Except as prohibited by law, CONTRACTOR waives 
all rights of subrogation against the COUNTY for 
recovery of damages to the extent they are covered by 
workers compensation and employers liability. 

 
If CONTRACTOR, subcontractor, or sub-subcontractor fails 
to comply with all State of Washington workers 
compensation statutes and regulations and COUNTY incurs 
fines or is required by law to provide benefits to or 
obtain coverage for such employees, CONTRACTOR shall 
indemnify the COUNTY. Indemnity shall include all fines, 
payment of benefits to CONTRACTOR or subcontractor 
employees, or their heirs or legal representatives, and 
the cost of effecting coverage on behalf of such 
employees. Any amount owed to COUNTY by CONTRACTOR 
pursuant to the indemnity agreement may be deducted from 
any payments owed by COUNTY to CONTRACTOR for 
performance of this Contract.  

 
c. Commercial General Liability and Employers Liability 

Insurance: Prior to the start of work under this 
Contract, CONTRACTOR shall maintain commercial general 
liability coverage (policy form CG0001 or equivalent) to 
protect the CONTRACTOR from claims for wrongful death, 
bodily injury, personal injury and property damage, 
which may arise from any actions or inactions under this 
Contract by CONTRACTOR or by anyone directly employed by 
or contracting with CONTRACTOR. The minimum commercial 
general liability insurance limits shall be as follows: 

 
$2,000,000 General Aggregate 
$2,000,000 Products/Completed Operations Aggregate 
$1,000,000 Personal Injury and Advertising Injury 
$1,000,000 Each Occurrence 

 
 The commercial general liability policy will contain an 

endorsement naming the COUNTY, its elected and appointed 
officials, employees and agents as an Additional Insured 
and an endorsement that specifically states that 
CONTRACTOR’s commercial general liability policy shall 
be primary, and not contributory, with any other 
insurance maintained by the COUNTY. 

 
 The CONTRACTOR will provide commercial general liability 

coverage that does not exclude any activity to be 
performed in fulfillment of this Contract and does not 



 
- 7 - 

exclude liability pursuant to the indemnification 
requirement under Section [7]. CONTRACTOR'S commercial 
general liability policy shall provide cross liability 
coverage, indicating essentially that except with 
respect to the limits of insurance and any rights or 
duties specifically assigned in this coverage part to 
the first named insured, this insurance applies as if 
each named insured were the only named insured, and 
separately to each insured against whom claims are made 
or suit is brought. 

 
 CONTRACTOR shall also provide Stop Gap Employer's 

Liability Insurance coverage with minimum limits as 
follows: 
 
$1,000,000 Each Accident 
$1,000,000 Policy Limit for Disease 
$1,000,000 Each Employee for Disease 

 
d. Automobile Liability: The CONTRACTOR shall maintain, 

during the life of this Contract, Automobile Liability 
Insurance (ISO Form Number CA0001 or equivalent) 
covering any auto (Symbol 1), or if the Contractor has 
no owned autos, hired (Symbol 8) and non-owned autos 
(Symbol 9), in the amount of not less than one million 
dollars ($1,000,000) per accident for Bodily Injury and 
Property Damage to protect CONTRACTOR from claims which 
may arise from the performance of this Contract, whether 
such operations be by the CONTRACTOR or by anyone 
directly or indirectly employed by the CONTRACTOR.  

 
e. Other Insurance Provisions: 

 
1. The CONTRACTOR'S liability insurance provisions shall 

be primary with respect to any insurance or 
self-insurance programs covering the COUNTY, its 
elected and appointed officers, officials, employees 
and agents. CONTRACTOR’S liability insurance policies 
must be endorsed to show this primary coverage. Any 
insurance, self-insured retention, deductible or risk 
retention maintained or participated in by the COUNTY 
shall be excess and not contributory to CONTRACTOR’S 
insurance policies. 

 
2. The CONTRACTOR'S liability insurance policies shall 

contain no special limitations on the scope of 
protection afforded to the COUNTY as an additional 
insured.  



 
- 8 - 

 
3. Any failure to comply with reporting provisions of 

the policies shall not affect coverage provided to 
the COUNTY, its officers, officials, employees or 
agents.  

 
4. The CONTRACTOR'S insurance shall apply separately to 

each insured against whom claim is made or suit is 
brought, except with respect to the limits of the 
insurer's liability.  

 
5. The CONTRACTOR shall include all subcontractors as 

insureds under its policies or shall furnish separate 
certificates and endorsements for each subcontractor. 
All coverage for subcontractors shall be subject to 
all of the requirements stated herein.  

 
6. The insurance limits mandated for any insurance 

coverage required by this Contract are not intended 
to be an indication of exposure nor are they 
limitations on indemnification. If the CONTRACTOR 
maintains higher limits than the minimums required 
in this contract, the COUNTY shall be entitled to 
coverage for the higher limits maintained by the 
CONTRACTOR. 

 
7. The CONTRACTOR shall maintain all required policies 

in force from the time services commence until 
services are completed. Certificates, policies, and 
endorsements expiring before completion of services 
shall be promptly replaced. CONTRACTOR is required 
to maintain claims made professional liability 
insurance for a minimum of 36 months after the 
effective date of termination or completion of this 
Contract. All liability insurance required under this 
Contract, except for professional liability under 
Section 8(a), shall be written on an Occurrence 
Policy form.  

 
8. CONTRACTOR hereby agrees to waive subrogation with 

respect to each insurance policy maintained under 
this Contract. When required by an insurer, or if a 
policy condition does not permit CONTRACTOR to enter 
into a pre-loss agreement to waive subrogation 
without an endorsement, then CONTRACTOR agrees to 
notify the insurer and obtain such endorsement. This 
requirement shall not apply to any policy which 
includes a condition expressly prohibiting waiver of 



 
- 9 - 

subrogation by the insured or which voids coverage 
should the CONTRACTOR enter into such a waiver of 
subrogation on a pre-loss basis.  

 
9. Compensation and/or payments due to CONTRACTOR under 

this Agreement are expressly conditioned upon 
CONTRACTOR’S strict compliance with all insurance 
requirements. Payment to CONTRACTOR may be suspended 
in the event of non-compliance. Upon receipt of 
evidence of CONTRACTOR’S compliance, such payments 
not otherwise subject to withholding or set-off will 
be released to CONTRACTOR. 

 
f. Verification of Coverage and Acceptability of Insurers:  

 
 All insurance required under this Contract shall be 

issued by companies authorized to do business under the 
laws of the State of Washington and have a A. M. Best's 
rating of at least A-VII or better in the most recently 
published edition of Best’s Reports. Any exception to 
this requirement must be reviewed and approved in 
writing by the Benton County Risk Manager. If an insurer 
is not admitted to do business within Washington State, 
all insurance policies and procedures for issuing the 
insurance policy must comply with Chapter 48.15 RCW and 
284-15 WAC.  

  
1. All insurance to be maintained by the CONTRACTOR, 

other than Professional Liability, Auto Liability and 
Workmen’s Compensation, shall specifically include 
the COUNTY, its elected officials, employees and 
volunteers as an “Additional Insured” by way of 
endorsement and shall not be reduced or canceled 
without thirty (30) days written prior notice to the 
COUNTY. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by 
the COUNTY, its elected and appointed officials, 
employees and agents shall be excess of the 
CONTRACTOR’s insurance and shall not contribute to 
it. 

 
2. Certificates of Liability Insurance, with 

endorsements attached, are to be provided to the 
County’s Contract Representative referenced in 
Section 4. 

 
3. All written notices under this Section [8] and notice 

of cancellation or change of required insurance 
coverages shall be mailed to the COUNTY’s Contract 



 
- 10 - 

Representative referenced in Section 4.  
 

4. The CONTRACTOR or its broker shall provide a copy of 
any and all insurance policies specified in this 
Contract upon request of the Benton County Risk 
Manager at the following address: Benton County Risk 
Manager, 7122 W. Okanogan Place, Bldg. A, Kennewick, 
WA 99336.  

 
9. TERMINATION 
 

a. The COUNTY may terminate this Contract in whole or in 
part whenever the COUNTY determines, in its sole 
discretion, that such termination is in the best 
interests of the COUNTY. The COUNTY may terminate this 
Contract upon giving ten (10) days written notice by 
certified mail to the CONTRACTOR. In that event, the 
COUNTY shall pay the CONTRACTOR for all cost incurred by 
the CONTRACTOR in performing the Contract up to the date 
of such notice. Payment shall be made in accordance with 
the Compensation Section of this Contract. 

 
b. In the event that funding for this project is withdrawn, 

reduced or limited in any way after the effective date 
of this Contract, the COUNTY may summarily terminate 
this Contract notwithstanding any other termination 
provision in this Contract. Termination under this 
paragraph shall be effective upon the date specified in 
the written notice of termination sent by COUNTY to the 
CONTRACTOR. After the effective date, no charges 
incurred under this Contract shall be allowed. 

 
c. If the CONTRACTOR breaches any of its obligations 

hereunder, and fails to cure the breach within ten (10) 
days of written notice to do so by the COUNTY, the COUNTY 
may immediately terminate this Contract by so notifying 
the CONTRACTOR, in which case the COUNTY shall pay the 
CONTRACTOR only for the costs of services accepted by 
the COUNTY, in accordance with the Compensation Section 
of this Contract. Upon such termination, the COUNTY, at 
its discretion, may obtain performance of the work 
elsewhere, and the CONTRACTOR shall bear all costs and 
expenses incurred by the COUNTY in completing the work 
and all damage sustained by the COUNTY by reason of the 
CONTRACTOR'S breach. 

  
10. ASSIGNMENT, DELEGATION AND SUBCONTRACTING 
 



 
- 11 - 

a. The CONTRACTOR shall perform the terms of this Contract 
using only its bona fide employees or agents, and the 
obligations and duties of the CONTRACTOR under this 
Contract shall not be assigned, delegated, or 
subcontracted to any other person or firm without the 
prior express written consent of the COUNTY. 

 
b. The CONTRACTOR warrants that it has not paid nor has it 

agreed to pay any company, person, partnership, or firm, 
other than a bona fide employee working exclusively for 
CONTRACTOR, any fee, commission, percentage, brokerage 
fee, gift, or other consideration contingent upon or 
resulting from the award or making of this Contract. 

 
11. NON-WAIVER OF RIGHTS 

 
The parties agree that the excuse or forgiveness of 

performance, or waiver of any provision(s) of this Contract does 
not constitute a waiver of such provision(s) or future performance, 
or prejudice the right of the waiving party to enforce any of the 
provisions of this Contract at a later time. All waivers of any 
provision(s) of this Contract shall be in writing and in the 
absence of such, no action or inaction shall be construed to be 
such a waiver. 
 
12. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 
 

a. The CONTRACTOR'S services shall be furnished by the 
CONTRACTOR as an independent contractor and not as an 
agent, employee or servant of the COUNTY.  The CONTRACTOR 
specifically has the right to direct and control 
CONTRACTOR'S own activities in providing the agreed 
services in accordance with the specifications set out 
in this Contract. 

 
b. The CONTRACTOR acknowledges that the entire compensation 

for this Contract is set forth in Section 5 of this 
Contract, and neither the CONTRACTOR nor its employees 
are entitled to any COUNTY benefits, including, but not 
limited to: vacation pay, holiday pay, sick leave pay, 
medical, dental, or other insurance benefits, fringe 
benefits, or any other rights or privileges afforded to 
COUNTY employees. 

 
c. The CONTRACTOR shall have and maintain complete 

responsibility and control over all of its 
subcontractors, employees, agents, and representatives.  
No subcontractor, employee, agent, or representative of 



 
- 12 - 

the CONTRACTOR shall be or deem to be or act or purport 
to act as an employee, agent, or representative of the 
COUNTY. 

 
d. CONTRACTOR shall pay for all taxes, fees, licenses, or 

payments required by federal, state or local law which 
are now or may be enacted during the term of this 
Contract. 

 
e. The CONTRACTOR agrees to immediately remove any of its 

employees or agents from their assignment to perform 
services under this Contract upon receipt of a written 
request to do so from the COUNTY'S contract 
representative or designee. 

 
13. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS 
 

The CONTRACTOR shall comply with all applicable federal, 
state and local laws, rules and regulations in performing this 
Contract. 

 
14. INSPECTION OF BOOKS AND RECORDS 
 

The COUNTY may, at reasonable times, inspect the books and 
records of the CONTRACTOR relating to the performance of this 
Contract.  The CONTRACTOR shall keep all records required by this 
Contract for six (6) years after termination of this Contract for 
audit purposes. 
 
15. NONDISCRIMINATION 
 

The CONTRACTOR, its assignees, delegates, or subcontractors 
shall not discriminate against any person in the performance of 
any of its obligations hereunder on the basis of age, sex, marital 
status, sexual orientation, race, creed, religion, color, national 
origin, honorably discharged veteran or military status, 
disability, or any other protected status. 
 
16. OWNERSHIP OF MATERIALS/WORKS PRODUCED 
 

a. All reports, drawings, plans, specifications, all forms 
of electronic media, and data and documents produced in 
the performance of the work under this Contract shall be 
"works for hire" as defined by the U.S. Copyright Act of 
1976 and shall be owned by the COUNTY.  Ownership 
includes the right to copyright, patent, register, and 
the ability to transfer these rights.  The COUNTY agrees 
that if it uses any materials prepared by the CONTRACTOR 



 
- 13 - 

for purposes other than those intended by this Contract, 
it does so at its sole risk and it agrees to hold the 
CONTRACTOR harmless there from to the extent such use is 
not agreed to in writing by the CONTRACTOR. 

 
b. An electronic copy of all word processing documents 

shall be submitted to the COUNTY upon request or at the 
end of the job using the word processing program and 
version specified by the COUNTY. 

 
17. PATENT/COPYRIGHT INFRINGEMENT 
 

The CONTRACTOR shall hold harmless, indemnify and defend the 
COUNTY, its officers, officials, employees and agents, from and 
against any claimed action, cause or demand brought against the 
COUNTY, where such action is based on the claim that information 
supplied by the CONTRACTOR or subcontractor infringes any patent 
or copyright.  The CONTRACTOR shall be notified promptly in writing 
by the COUNTY of any notice of such claim. 
 
18. DISPUTES 
 

Disputes between the CONTRACTOR and the COUNTY, arising under 
and by virtue of this Contract, shall be brought to the attention 
of the COUNTY at the earliest possible time in order that such 
matters may be settled or other appropriate action promptly taken. 
Any dispute relating to the quality or acceptability of performance 
and/or compensation due the CONTRACTOR shall be decided by the 
COUNTY'S Contract Representative or designee. All rulings, orders, 
instructions and decisions of the COUNTY'S Contract Representative 
shall be final and conclusive, subject to CONTRACTOR'S right to 
seek judicial relief. 
 
19. CONFIDENTIALITY 
 

The CONTRACTOR, its employees, subcontractors, and their 
employees shall maintain the confidentiality of all information 
provided by the COUNTY or acquired by the COUNTY in performance of 
this Contract, except upon the prior written consent of the COUNTY 
or an order entered by a court of competent jurisdiction. The 
CONTRACTOR shall promptly give the COUNTY written notice of any 
judicial proceeding seeking disclosure of such information. 
 
20. CHOICE OF LAW, JURISDICTION AND VENUE 
 

a. This Contract has been and shall be construed as having 
been made and delivered within the State of Washington, 
and it is agreed by each party hereto that this Contract 



 
- 14 - 

shall be governed by the laws of the State of Washington, 
both as to its interpretation and performance. 

 
b. Any action at law, suit in equity, or judicial proceeding 

arising out of this Contract shall be instituted and 
maintained only in any of the courts of competent 
jurisdiction in Benton County, Washington. 

 
21. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 
 

The COUNTY, to the extent permitted by law, and the CONTRACTOR 
each bind themselves, their partners, successors, executors, 
administrators, and assigns to the other party to this Contract 
and to the partners, successors, administrators, and assigns of 
such other party in respect to all covenants to this Contract. 
 
22. SEVERABILITY 
 

a. If a court of competent jurisdiction holds any part, 
term or provision of this Contract to be illegal, or 
invalid in whole or in part, the validity of the 
remaining provisions shall not be affected, and the 
parties' rights and obligations shall be construed and 
enforced as if this Contract did not contain the 
particular provision held to be invalid. 

 
b. If it should appear that any provision of this Contract 

is in conflict with any statutory provision of the State 
of Washington, said provision which may conflict 
therewith shall be deemed inoperative and null and void 
insofar as it may be in conflict therewith, and shall be 
deemed modified to conform to such statutory provision. 

 
23. ENTIRE AGREEMENT 
 

The parties agree that this Contract is the complete 
expression of its terms and conditions. Any oral or written 
representations or understandings not incorporated in this 
Contract are specifically excluded. 
 
24. NOTICES 
 

Any notices shall be effective if personally served upon the 
other party or if mailed by registered or certified mail, return 
receipt requested, to the addresses set out in the Contract 
Representatives Section of this Contract. Notice may also be given 
by facsimile with the original to follow by regular mail. Notice 
shall be deemed to be given three days following the date of 



 
- 15 - 

mailing or immediately, if personally served. For service by 
facsimile, service shall be effective at the beginning of the next 
working day. 
 
25. SURVIVABILITY 
 

All Contract terms, which by their context are clearly 
intended to survive the termination and/or expiration of this 
Contract, shall so survive. These terms include, but are not 
limited to, indemnification provisions (Sections 7 and 17); 
extended reporting period requirements for professional liability 
insurance (Section 8(a)); inspection and keeping of records and 
books (Section 14); litigation hold notice (Section 26); Public 
Records Act (Section 27) and confidentiality (Section 19). 
 
26. LITIGATION HOLD NOTICE 
 

In the event the COUNTY learns of circumstances leading to an 
increased likelihood of litigation regarding any matter where the 
records kept by CONTRACTOR pursuant to Section 14 of this agreement 
may be of evidentiary value, the COUNTY may issue written notice 
to CONTRACTOR of such circumstances and direct the CONTRACTOR to 
“hold” such records. In the event that CONTRACTOR receives such 
written notice, CONTRACTOR shall abide by all directions therein 
whether or not such written notice is received at a time when a 
Contract between CONTRACTOR and the COUNTY is in force. Such 
directions will include, but will not be limited to, instructions 
to suspend the six (6) year purge schedule as set out above in 
Section 14. 
 
27. PUBLIC RECORDS ACT 
 

CONTRACTOR hereby acknowledges that the COUNTY is a 
governmental entity and as such is subject to the requirements of 
the Public Records Act, RCW 42.56 et seq. Accordingly, CONTRACTOR 
understands that to the extent a proper request is made, the COUNTY 
may be required by virtue of that Act to disclose any records 
related to this Contract actually in its possession or in 
CONTRACTOR’S possession. This may include records that CONTRACTOR 
might regard as confidential or proprietary. To the extent that 
CONTRACTOR provides any records to the COUNTY that it regards as 
confidential or proprietary, it agrees to conspicuously mark the 
records as such. CONTRACTOR also hereby waives any and all claims 
or causes of action for any injury it may suffer by virtue of 
COUNTY’S release of records covered under the Public Records Act. 
COUNTY agrees to take all reasonable steps to notify CONTRACTOR in 
a timely fashion of any request made under the Public Records Act 
which will require disclosure of any records marked by CONTRACTOR 



 
- 16 - 

as confidential or proprietary, so that CONTRACTOR may seek a 
judicial order of protection if necessary. 
 
 

- This section intentionally left blank - 





 

EXHIBIT A 
 

SCOPE OF WORK 
 

 
Cascade Engineering Services (CES) will calibrate, certify and maintain speed measuring equipment. This 
equipment consists of Doppler Radar and Lidar. CES will come on site to provide the calibration and 
certification services. The Sheriff’s Office (SO) will send any repairs of the units to the CES and the SO 
will be responsible for the shipping charges back to the SO.  In addition, CES can provide the SO 
courtroom testimony if request to do so. 
 
Calibration and Certification Services - these services will include: Each unit that is calibrated for accuracy 
will also be issued a certificate of calibration. Each certificate will include : A title, e.g. "Calibration Report", 
or "Calibration Certificate";  Name  and address of laboratory, and location  where the calibration was 
carried out if different from the address of the laboratory ; Unique identification of the certificate or report 
(such as serial number ) and on each page; Name and address of customer, where appropriate;  Description  
and unambiguous  identification of the item calibrated;   Date(s) of performance of calibration, where 
appropriate; Identification of the calibration procedure used, or unambiguous description of any non-standard 
method used; Any deviations from, additions to or exclusions from the calibration method, and any other 
information relevant to a specific calibration; Measurements, examinations, and derived results and any 
failures identified;  A signature and  title, or an equivalent identification of the person(s) accepting 
responsibility for the content of the certificate or report (however produced), and date of issue;  Notarized 
signature of the person(s) accepting responsibility for the content of the certificate or report 
 
Repair Services- shall include repairing any of the units sent to the CES by SO. CES will provide an 
estimate for repairs when possible. CES will bill in 15 (fifteen) minute increments. The maximum Overhead 
and Parts services charge will be 10 percent.  Hours paid under this contract shall be only for productive 
hours at the job site. Time spent for transportation of workers, material acquisition, handling and delivery or 
movement of contractor owned or rental equipment is not chargeable directly but is overhead and must be 
included in the hourly rates for labor. The hourly "labor" rate quoted throughout this proposal is $95.00 
per hour for diagnostics and or repairs and is invoiced in fifteen (15) minute increments. Consumable 
materials and supplies, overhead, supervision, set-up and prep time are general and administrative costs are 
included in the quoted cost to perform the calibration and recertification service required on each speed 
measuring device. Repair replacement parts are quoted additionally, depending on the specific parts replaced. 
 
Courtroom Testimony - SO may request the CES to provide expert testimony for various courtroom 
requirements.  The hourly Courtroom Testimony Cost for Cascades expert witness will be substantially 
reduced if the Benton County Court will allow telephonic or video testimony.  Most such testimony is 
received and accomplished within less than one hour per telephonic appearance.   There is a one hour 
minimum per telephonic testimony appearance. The hourly "labor" rate quoted throughout this 
proposal is $95.00 per hour, portal to portal. Additional hour's testimony is invoiced accordingly, in 
whole hours. Telephonic testimony is embraced and utilized by other law enforcement agencies within 
Washington State.  If video testimony will be implemented and provided, it is invoiced at the same rate as 
above.  



Active Asset # Company Manufacturer Model Number Description Serial Number Cal Cost Last Calibration INT.
2017 Calibration 

Due
2018 Calibration 

Due

TRUE RP02653 BENTON COUNTY SHERIF KUSTOM RAPTOR SPEED MEASURING DEVICE RP02653  $            75.00 10/6/2016 12-M 10/6/2017 10/6/2018

TRUE DS20040 BENTON COUNTY SHERIF KUSTOM PRO-1000DS SPEED MEASURING DEVICE DS20040  $            75.00 10/6/2016 12-M 10/6/2017 10/6/2018

TRUE RP01666 BENTON COUNTY SHERIF KUSTOM RAPTOR RP1 SPEED MEASURING DEVICE RP01666  $            75.00 10/6/2016 12-M 10/6/2017 10/6/2018

TRUE RP01668 BENTON COUNTY SHERIF KUSTOM RAPTOR RP1 SPEED MEASURING DEVICE RP01668  $            75.00 10/6/2016 12-M 10/6/2017 10/6/2018

TRUE RP01669 BENTON COUNTY SHERIF KUSTOM RAPTOR RP1 SPEED MEASURING DEVICE RP01669  $            75.00 10/6/2016 12-M 10/6/2017 10/6/2018

TRUE RP01670 BENTON COUNTY SHERIF KUSTOM RAPTOR RP1 SPEED MEASURING DEVICE RP01670  $            75.00 10/6/2016 12-M 10/6/2017 10/6/2018

TRUE RP02652 BENTON COUNTY SHERIF KUSTOM RAPTOR SPEED MEASURING DEVICE RP02652  $            75.00 10/6/2016 12-M 10/6/2017 10/6/2018

TRUE RP02654 BENTON COUNTY SHERIF KUSTOM RAPTOR SPEED MEASURING DEVICE RP02654  $            75.00 10/6/2016 12-M 10/6/2017 10/6/2018

TRUE XE23719 BENTON COUNTY SHERIF KUSTOM EAGLE SPEED MEASURING DEVICE XE23719  $            75.00 10/6/2016 12-M 10/6/2017 10/6/2018

TRUE XE24118 BENTON COUNTY SHERIF KUSTOM EAGLE II SPEED MEASURING DEVICE XE24118  $            75.00 10/6/2016 12-M 10/6/2017 10/6/2018

TRUE XE24455 BENTON COUNTY SHERIF KUSTOM EAGLE II SPEED MEASURING DEVICE XE24455  $            75.00 10/6/2016 12-M 10/6/2017 10/6/2018

TRUE FH10339 BENTON COUNTY SHERIF KUSTOM FALCON HR SPEED MEASURING DEVICE FH10339  $            75.00 10/6/2016 12-M 10/6/2017 10/6/2018

TRUE FH10340 BENTON COUNTY SHERIF KUSTOM FALCON HR SPEED MEASURING DEVICE FH10340  $            75.00 10/6/2016 12-M 10/6/2017 10/6/2018

TRUE UX 004343 BENTON COUNTY SHERIF LASER TECHNOLOGY INC ULTRA LYTE SPEED MEASURING DEVICE UX 004343  $            75.00 10/6/2016 12-M 10/6/2017 10/6/2018

TRUE UX 004345 BENTON COUNTY SHERIF LASER TECHNOLOGY INC ULTRA LYTE SPEED MEASURING DEVICE UX 004345  $            75.00 10/6/2016 12-M 10/6/2017 10/6/2018

TRUE ENF937000987/ENF686001962 BENTON COUNTY SHERIF MPH INDUSTRIES ENFORCER SPEED MEASURING DEVICE ENF937000987/ENF686001962  $            75.00 10/6/2016 12-M 10/6/2017 10/6/2018

TRUE 17607 BENTON COUNTY SHERIF MPH INDUSTRIES ENFORCER 2 SPEED MEASURING DEVICE ENF937000986/ENF686001961  $            75.00 10/6/2016 12-M 10/6/2017 10/6/2018

TRUE ENF728000175/ENF686000345 BENTON COUNTY SHERIF MPH INDUSTRIES ENFORCER SPEED MEASURING DEVICE ENF728000175/ENF686000345  $            75.00 10/6/2016 12-M 10/6/2017 10/6/2018

TRUE ENF937000985 BENTON COUNTY SHERIF MPH INDUSTRIES ENFORCER SPEED MEASURING DEVICE ENF937000985  $            75.00 10/6/2016 12-M 10/6/2017 10/6/2018

TRUE ENF937000988/ENF686001963 BENTON COUNTY SHERIF MPH INDUSTRIES ENFORCER SPEED MEASURING DEVICE ENF937000988/ENF686001963  $            75.00 10/6/2016 12-M 10/6/2017 10/6/2018

TRUE ENF937000989/ENF686001964 BENTON COUNTY SHERIF MPH INDUSTRIES ENFORCER SPEED MEASURING DEVICE ENF937000989/ENF686001964  $            75.00 10/6/2016 12-M 10/6/2017 10/6/2018

TRUE ENF937000990/ENF686001965 BENTON COUNTY SHERIF MPH INDUSTRIES ENFORCER 2 SPEED MEASURING DEVICE ENF937000990/ENF686001965  $            75.00 10/6/2016 12-M 10/6/2017 10/6/2018

TRUE ENF937000991/ENF686001966 BENTON COUNTY SHERIF MPH INDUSTRIES ENFORCER 2 SPEED MEASURING DEVICE ENF937000991/ENF686001966  $            75.00 10/6/2016 12-M 10/6/2017 10/6/2018

TRUE PYT304001117 BENTON COUNTY SHERIF MPH INDUSTRIES PYTH0N SPEED MEASURING DEVICE PYT304001117  $            75.00 10/6/2016 12-M 10/6/2017 10/6/2018

TRUE PYT854002717 BENTON COUNTY SHERIF MPH INDUSTRIES PYTH0N SPEED MEASURING DEVICE PYT854002717  $            75.00 10/6/2016 12-M 10/6/2017 10/6/2018

TRUE PYT854002738 BENTON COUNTY SHERIF MPH INDUSTRIES PYTH0N SPEED MEASURING DEVICE PYT854002738  $            75.00 10/6/2016 12-M 10/6/2017 10/6/2018

TRUE PYT854002880 BENTON COUNTY SHERIF MPH INDUSTRIES PYTH0N SPEED MEASURING DEVICE PYT854002880  $            75.00 10/6/2016 12-M 10/6/2017 10/6/2018

TRUE PYT854002881 BENTON COUNTY SHERIF MPH INDUSTRIES PYTH0N SPEED MEASURING DEVICE PYT854002881  $            75.00 10/6/2016 12-M 10/6/2017 10/6/2018

TRUE PYT854002882 BENTON COUNTY SHERIF MPH INDUSTRIES PYTH0N SPEED MEASURING DEVICE PYT854002882  $            75.00 10/6/2016 12-M 10/6/2017 10/6/2018

TRUE PYT854002883 BENTON COUNTY SHERIF MPH INDUSTRIES PYTH0N SPEED MEASURING DEVICE PYT854002883  $            75.00 10/6/2016 12-M 10/6/2017 10/6/2018

TRUE PYT854003047 BENTON COUNTY SHERIF MPH INDUSTRIES PYTH0N SPEED MEASURING DEVICE PYT854003047  $            75.00 10/6/2016 12-M 10/6/2017 10/6/2018

TRUE PYT854003048 BENTON COUNTY SHERIF MPH INDUSTRIES PYTH0N SPEED MEASURING DEVICE PYT854003048  $            75.00 10/6/2016 12-M 10/6/2017 10/6/2018

TRUE PYT854003049 BENTON COUNTY SHERIF MPH INDUSTRIES PYTH0N SPEED MEASURING DEVICE PYT854003049  $            75.00 10/6/2016 12-M 10/6/2017 10/6/2018

TRUE PYT854003050 BENTON COUNTY SHERIF MPH INDUSTRIES PYTH0N SPEED MEASURING DEVICE PYT854003050  $            75.00 10/6/2016 12-M 10/6/2017 10/6/2018

TRUE PYT854003051 BENTON COUNTY SHERIF MPH INDUSTRIES PYTH0N SPEED MEASURING DEVICE PYT854003051  $            75.00 10/6/2016 12-M 10/6/2017 10/6/2018

TRUE PYT854003052 BENTON COUNTY SHERIF MPH INDUSTRIES PYTH0N SPEED MEASURING DEVICE PYT854003052  $            75.00 10/6/2016 12-M 10/6/2017 10/6/2018

TRUE PYT854003053 BENTON COUNTY SHERIF MPH INDUSTRIES PYTH0N SPEED MEASURING DEVICE PYT854003053  $            75.00 10/6/2016 12-M 10/6/2017 10/6/2018

TRUE PYT854003054 BENTON COUNTY SHERIF MPH INDUSTRIES PYTH0N SPEED MEASURING DEVICE PYT854003054  $            75.00 10/6/2016 12-M 10/6/2017 10/6/2018

TRUE AS010657 BENTON COUNTY SHERIF STALKER MDR SPEED MEASURING DEVICE AS010657  $            75.00 10/6/2016 12-M 10/6/2017 10/6/2018

TRUE LF3504 BENTON COUNTY SHERIF STALKER XLR SPEED MEASURING DEVICE LF3504  $            75.00 10/6/2016 12-M 10/6/2017 10/6/2018

TRUE LF3496 BENTON COUNTY SHERIF STALKER XLR SPEED MEASURING DEVICE LF3496  $            75.00 10/6/2016 12-M 10/6/2017 10/6/2018

TRUE LF002658 BENTON COUNTY SHERIF STALKER XLR SPEED MEASURING DEVICE LF002658  $            75.00 10/6/2016 12-M 10/6/2017 10/6/2018

TRUE LF3503 BENTON COUNTY SHERIF STALKER XLR SPEED MEASURING DEVICE LF3503  $            75.00 10/6/2016 12-M 10/6/2017 10/6/2018

TRUE LF3510 BENTON COUNTY SHERIF STALKER XLR SPEED MEASURING DEVICE LF3510  $            75.00 10/6/2016 12-M 10/6/2017 10/6/2018

3,300.00$   



WEH
Text Box
q. Participation Agreement w/Cities of Kennewick, Pasco, Richland & W Richland for Hanford Communities























Dated this day of , 

Attest:

cc: Dept., Auditor C. McKenzie

RESOLUTION

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON:

IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY FUNDS RE: TRANSFER OF FUNDS WITHIN 

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT FUND NUMBER 0135101, DEPARTMENT 

NUMBER 000.

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, that 

funds shall be transferred as outlined in Exhibit "A", attached hereto.

Clerk of the Board

Chairman of the Board

Member

Member

Constituting the Board of County Commissioners

of Benton County, Washington.

WEH
Text Box
r. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0135-101, Dept. 000



EXHIBIT "A"

Dept Name: Dept Nbr:

Fund Name: Fund Nbr:

TRANSFER FROM:  TRANSFER TO: 

BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT

(6 digit) (4 digit) (6 digit) (4 digit)

558-610 1652 Community Relations Coordinator $2,049 558-610 1731 Sus. Dev. Coordinator $7,683

558-610 5207 Hanford Communities Board $13,030 558-610 2102 Social Security $358

558-610 3101 Supplies $1,500 558-610 2103 Medical Insurance $466

558-610 3201 Vehicle Fuel $679 558-610 2104 Retirement $714

558-610 4103 Professional Services $500 558-610 4102 Contract Services $5,848

558-610 4112 Economic Dev. $3,850 558-610 4901 Association Dues $11,259

558-610 4201 Postage $130

558-610 4301 Travel $2,075

558-610 4304 Registration $414

558-610 4503 Rentals $600

558-610 4905 Training $1,144

558-610 4906 Print/Bindery $357

TOTAL $26,328 TOTAL $26,328

Explanation:

Prepared by: Cami McKenzie Date:  11-Oct-2016

Approved q Denied q Date:  

Chairman

Member

Member

BENTON COUNTY LINE ITEM TRANSFER
Sustainable Dev.

Sustainable Development

000

0135101


	CA - Facilities d.pdf
	Agenda action sheet for SimplexGrinnell
	BACKGROUND INFORMATION / SUMMARY

	resolution for Simplex Grinnell 2016
	RESOLUTION

	Scanned Contract
	Exhibits ABC
	Simplex Grinnell Exhibit A
	prevailing wage Fire Systems Exhibit B
	Bkgrnd Check Form - Exhibit C





